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NOTICE OF A REGULAR MEETING OF
THE FRIEDMAN MEMORIAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a regular meeting of the Friedman Memorial Airport Authority shall be held Tuesday, January 9, 2018 at
5:30 p.m. at the old Blaine County Courthouse Meeting Room Hailey, idoho. All matters shail be considered Joint Decision Matters
unless otherwise noted. The proposed Agenda for the meeting is as follows:

AGENDA
January 9, 2018
APPROVE AGENDA

PUBLIC COMMENT (20 Minutes Allotted)

FRIEDMAN MEMORIAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY MEETING MINUTES OF:
A.  December S, 2017 Regular Meeting —~ Motion to Approve — Attachment #1

REPORTS

A, Chairman Report

B. Blaine County Report

C. City of Hailey Report

D. Airport Manager Report

E. Fly Sun Valley Alllance Report

AIRPORT STAFF BRIEF {5 Minutes Allotted)

A, Noise Complaints

B. Profit & Loss, ATCT Trafflc Operations Count and Enplanement Data — Attachments #2 — #4
€. Alrport Commercial Flight Interruptions (unofficial)

D. Review Correspondence — Attachment #5

NEW BUSINESS
A. ACTION

a. Consideration of Acceptance of FMAA Financial Statements & Other Financial Information

Year Ended September 30, 2017 — Attachment #6

b. Consideration of FMAA Resolution Regarding Contracting Authority — Attachment #7

¢.  Consideration of Mountain West Bank Account for Health and/or Dependent Care Flex Spending Accounts
B. Updates and Discussion

a. Procedures for Enacting Airport Regulations — Attachment #8

CONTINUING BUSINESS
A.  Construction and Capital Projects
a. ACTION
i. NONE

b.  Updates and Dlscussion
i. Runway Pavement Maintenance
il. Terminal Air Carrier Apron and Parking Lot Improvements — Attachment #9
B. Airport Planning Projects
a. ACTION
i. NONE
b. Updates and Discussion
i.  Environmental Assessment for Runway Protection Zone and Obstruction Removal
il. Airport Noise Modeling
C. Misc.
a. ACTION
i. NONE
b. Updates and Discussion
i. Communications RFP

PUBLIC COMMENT

EXECUTIVE SESSION ~ 1.C, §74-206 (c) To acquire an interest in real property which Is not owned by a public agency
I.C. §74-206(e) To consider preliminary negotiations involving matters of trade or commerce in which the
governing hody is in competition with governing bodles in other states or nations
I.C. §74-206 (f) To communicate with legal counsel to discuss legal ramifications for controversy imminently
likely to be litigated
ADJOURNMENT

FRIEDMAN MEMORIAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY MEETINGS ARE OPEN TO ALL INTERESTED PARTIES. SHOULD YOU DESIRE TO ATTEND A BOARD MEETING AND NEED A REASQNABLE
ACCOMMODATION TO DO S0, PLEASE CONTACT THE AIRPORT MANAGER'S OFFICE AT LEAST ONE WEEK IN ADVANCE BY CALLING 208-788-4956 OR WRITING TO 1616 AIRPORT CIRCLE,
HAJLEY, IDAHO 83333,



. FRIEDMAN MEMORIAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY MEETING MINUTES OF:

A. December 5, 2017 Reguilar Meeting — Motion to Approve - Attachment #1

Iv. REPORTS
A. Chairman Report
This item is on the agenda to permit a Chairman report if appropriate.
B. Blaine County Report
This item is on the agenda to permit a County report if appropriate.
C. City of Hailey Report
This item is on the agenda to permit a City report if appropriate.
D. Airport Manager Report
This item is on the agenda to permit an Airport Manager report if appropriate.
E. Fly Sun Valley Alliance Report

This item is on the agenda to permit a report if appropriate.

V. AIRPORT STAFF BRIEF - (5 Minutes Allotted)

A. NO Noise Complaints in December 2017
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B. Profit & Loss, ATCT Traffic Operatlons Count and Enplanement Data - Attachments #2 - #4

Attachment #2 is Friedman Memorial Airport Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual {unaudited)
Attachment #3 is 2001 - 2017 ATCT Traffic Operations data comparison by month
Attachment #4 is 2017 Enplanement, Deplanement and Seat Occupancy data

The following revenue and expense analysis is provided for Board information and review:

October 2016/2017
Total Non-Federal Revanue October 2017 $330,970.07
Total Non-Federal Revenue October 2016 $288,023.29
Total Non-Federal Revenue FY '18 thru October $330,970.07
Total Non-Federal Revenue FY 17 thru October $288,023.29
Total Non-Federal Expenses October, 2017 $289,166.18
Total Non-Federal Expenses October, 2016 $285,120.12
Total Non-Federal Expenses FY '18 thru October $289,166.18
Total Non-Federal Expenses FY 17 thru October $285,120.12
Net Income to include Federal Programs FY ’18 thru October $81,160.49
Net Income to include Federal Programs FY ’17 thru October $-37,349.66

C. Airport Commercial Flight Interruptions {unofficial):

AIRLINE FLIGHT CANCELLATIONS FLIGHT DIVERSIONS
Dec. 1 through Dec. 31
Alaska Airlines 0 1
Delta 1 8
United 0 0

D. Review Correspondence — Attachment #5

Attachment #5 Is included for Board review.
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Vi.

FMAA Meeting Brief 01-09-18

NEW BUSINESS
A. ACTION
a. Consideration of Acceptance of FMAA Financial Statements & Other Financiai

information Year Ended September 30, 2017 — Attachment #6

Attachment #6 is the draft Friedman Memorial Airport Authority Financial Statements
and Other Financial Information for the Year Ended September 30, 2017. A portion of
the Financial Statements is the Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) letter.

Rexroat, Harberd & Associates prepared the financial statements and Harris & Company
completed the audit. Ms. Laurie Harberd from Rexroat, Harberd & Associates and Mr.
Josh Tyree from Harris & Company will attend the meeting to present the financial
statements and resuits of the audit and will be available to answer any questions the
Board may have.

Action requested: Consider Motion to Approve Draft Financial Statements and direct
Staff/Auditor to finalize for distribution to appropriate government agencies.

Consideration of FMAA Resolution Regarding Contracting Authority — Attachment #7

Chairman Keirn, staff, and legal counsel are requesting the Board consider Attachment
#7 to formalize and define a tiered contracting and purchasing process for the Board
Chair, Airport Manager, and Finance Committee. The process and Resolution will allow
the Airport Manager and Chair to operate the airport in an efficient and orderly manner
as it relates to contracts without being required to obtain contracting and spending
approval from the entire Board, unless required by law.

Action requested: Consider Resolution of the Friedman Memorial Airport Authority
Regarding Contracting Authority.



c. Consideration of Mountain West Bank Account for Health and/or Dependent Care Flex

Spending Accounts

Staff has determined that the savings account opened in July, 2017, for the purpose of
managing the Airport’s Flex Spending Accounts (FSA) and/or Dependent Care Account
Plans, has a limited number of allowable transfers and is subject to transfer fees once
the maximum number of transfers is exceeded each month. Staff has researched and
has spoken with bank representatives and it has been recommended that the savings
account be closed and the funds be transferred to an account with more transfer
flexibility.

Staff is requesting the Board authorize closing the savings account and provide
authorization to open a new account that will provide transfer flexibility and the ability
to effectively manage and segregate employee contributions and expenditures made
from other airport accounts.

Action requested: Consider Motion to authorize staff to close the Mountain West
Bank savings account utilized for management of the Health Flex Spending Accounts
(FSA) and/or Dependent Care Account Plans and to open an account that will better fit
the needs of the program and the airport.

B. Updates and Discussion

a. Procedures for Enacting Airport Regulations — Attachment #8

At the December meeting, it was brought to the Board’s attention an existing FMAA
policy for enacting airport regulations. Based on the ensuing discussion, the Board was
concerned the policy may be overly cumbersome. The Board requested to review and
discuss the existing policy at this meeting and perhaps consider modifications. No action
is expected, only discussion.
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VI CONTINUING BUSINESS

A. CONSTRUCTION and CAPITAL Projects
a. ACTION
i. NONE
b. Updates and Discussion

i. Runway Pavement Maintenance

The final pavement markings for the runway and apron are tentatively scheduled for
June 5 and 6, 2018. The runway will need to be closed to complete the work, and
the closure schedule is as follows: June 5th —the Runway will be closed from 8:15
am until 9:00 pm; June 6th — the Runway will be closed from 8:15 am until
approximately 5:00 pm. This schedule allows early morning and late evening use of
the airport for commercial service and GA traffic each of the two work days. The
closure has been coordinated with Delta Airlines.

ii. Terminal Air Carrier Apron and Parking Lot Improvements — Attachment #9

Parking Lot Reconfiguration — As previously briefed, Staff, and representatives from
T-O Engineers met with the contractor’s representatives from |daho Materials and
Construction {IMC), on November 2, 2017. The purpose of that meeting was to
discuss the project schedule and implementation. The contractor plans to begin
work as soon as weather allows in Spring 2018.

On the same day, Staff, and consultants from T-O Engineers, met with stakeholders
regarding the parking lot improvements. The stakeholders included The Car Park
(parking lot management company), the airlines, transportation service providers,
and rental car companies. Excellent feedback was received and modifications to the
parking lot plan were developed.

A second follow-up meeting was held on December 14, 2017, with the rental car
companies, transportation service providers, and taxicab companies, but only
representatives from the rental car companies attended the meeting. Additional
feedback was received, and the suggestions were incorporated into the exhibit
presented at this meeting.

Staff feels the proposed layout (Attachment #9) represents the highest and best use
of existing space considering the wide variety of users. Staff is seeking Board
comment and feedback so the proposed layout can be finalized and incorporated
into the final design by T-O Engineers.
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Parking Lot Equipment - Staff and our parking lot consultant received a cost
estimate for new parking lot equipment on December 18. Staff and our consultant
discussed the estimate in detail and based on discussion, the Airport Manager has
directed our consultant to further coordinate with The Car Park to refine the
estimate and determine order lead time for the equipment. It is expected that Staff
will have a refined cost estimate and additional details to share with the
finance/lease committee and full Board by the February meeting.

Utility Relocations — The work associated with the relocation of the power lines,
telecommunication lines, and gas lines from beneath the proposed apron expansion
and parking lot improvement areas have essentially been completed. Work began
on November 8th and was completed by December 29th. By completing this work

before winter, the contractor will be able to start project-related work as soon as
weather allows in the spring.

B. AIRPORT PLANNING PROJECTS
a. ACTION

i. NONE
b. Updates and Discussion

i. Environmental Assessment for Runway Protection Zone and Qbstruction Removal

Staff is working with the FAA to address impacts to the historic farmstead. The FAA
has determined that, due to Section 4{f} of the U.S. DOT Act of 1966, that additional
avoidance measures need to be considered. Section 4{f) protects significant publicly
owned parks, recreational areas, wildlife and waterfowl refuges, and public and
private historic sites. The consultant has prepared a Section 4{f) evaluation and is
working on addressing FAA comments. The Section 106 Historic Resources report
has not been transmitted to SHPO at this time. Staff has contacted FAA to
determine any additional issues.

The EA has been reformatted to meet FAA's revised template. However, the EAis
dependent on the Section 106 report, which has yet to be reviewed by SHPO, and

until the FAA makes a determination on the Section 4(f) impacts.

Staff and our consultant is working with the FAA to try and keep the process moving
forward as expediently as possible.
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Airport Noise Modeling

The results of the Phase 2 noise modeling were presented to the Board at the
December meeting. As directed by the Board at the meeting, Staff has contacted
airport noise consultant Landrum & Brown regarding additional thoughts and
experience based on the modeling resuits. Chairman Keirn and Airport Manager
Pomeroy believe the best course of action at this point is to have Landrum & Brown
attend the February or March FMAA meeting to provide the Board an opportunity
to discuss the modeling results with the airport noise expert team and
recommendations and potential options moving forward. Staff anticipates
discussion of this approach by the Board at the meeting.

C. MISC.
a. ACTION
i. NONE

b. Updates and Discussion

Commuhnications RFP

A revised Draft Communications RFP was provided to the Communications selection
committee on December 21. It is expected the committee and Airport Manager
Pomeroy will meet to discuss the revised RFP and selection process moving forward
and will have a report to the Board at the February meeting.

Vill. PUBLIC COMMENT

X EXECUTIVE SESSION - I.C. §74-206 (c) To acquire an interest in real property which

is not owned by a public agency

I.C. §74-206 (e) To consider preliminary negotiations involving
matters of trade or commerce in which the
governing body is in competition with governing
bodies in other states or nations

1.C. §74-206 (f) To communicate with legal counsel to discuss
legal ramifications for controversy imminently
likely to be litigated

X. ADJOURNMENT
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IN ATTENDANCE:

CALL TO ORDER:

. APPROVE AGENDA

ll. PUBLIC COMMENT

lll. APPROVE FMAA
MEETING MINUTES

IV. REPORTS

FMAA. Regular Meeting — 12/06/17

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETANGACHMENT 1
OF THE
FRIEDMAN MEMORIAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY*

December 5, 2017
5:30 P.M.

BOARD MEMBERS: Chairman - Don Keirn, Vice-Chairman — Jacob Greenberg,
Secretary - Lawrence Schoen, Treasurer — Ron Fairfax, Board - Fritz Haemmerle,
Angenie McCleary, Pat Cooley

FRIEDMAN MEMORIAL AIRPORT STAFF: Airport Manager — Chris Pomeroy,
Contracts/Finance Administrator — Lisa Emerick, ASC/Special Projects
Coordinator/Executive Assistant — Steve Guthrie, Airport Operations Manager — Todd
Emerick; Administrative Assistant/Alternate Security Coordinator — Roberta Christensen,
Administrative Assistant — Cecilia Vega; Administrative Assistant/IT Systems Coordinator
— April Matlock

CONSULTANTS: T-O Engineers — Dave Mitchell, Joe Guenther; Centerlyne ~Candace
Crew, Sarah Shepard

AIRPORT TENANTS/PUBLIC: Atlantic Aviation — Brian Blackburn; Comp Plan — Len
Harlig; FHR — Marc Reinemann; GCA - John Strauss;

AIRPORT LEGAL COUNSEL: Lawson Laski Clark & Pogue, PLLC — Jim Laski
PRESS: Idaho Mountain Express — Joshua Murdock

The meeting was called to order at 5:31 p.m. by Chairman Keirn.
The agenda was approved as presented.

Mr. Len Harlig thanked the Board and Staff for installing the parking lot wayfinding
signage.

A. November 7, 2017 Regular Meeting {See Brief)

The November 7, 2017 Friedman Memorial Airport Authority Meeting Minutes were
approved as presented.

MOTION: Made by McCleary to approve the November 7, 2017
Friedman Memorial Airport Authority Regular Meeting
Minutes as presented. Seconded by Vice-Chalrman
Greenberg.

PASSED
BOARD MEMBER HAEMMERLE ABSTAINED

A. Chairman Report
No report was given.

B. Blaine County Report
No report was given.

C. Cilty of Hailey Report
No report was given.



FMAA Regular Meeting — 12/05/17

D. Fly Sun Valley Alliance Report

Ms. Carol Waller, FSVA Director, invited the Board to the December 23 Chicago
Flight Inauguration Reception and commented that coordinating efforts between
FMAA Staff, FSVA, and the Chambers are taking place to ensure a successful event.
Ms. Waller reported that bookings for the winter are solid. Diversion bussing has
begun, and communication procedures for disseminating diversion program
information have improved.

Board Member Fairfax lamented that he will not be on the first outbound flight to
Chicago.

Airport Manger Report (See Power Point Presentation)

Airport Finance/Contracts Administrator Emerick briefed the Board on the status of
the audit.

Airport Manager Pomeroy thanked the Administrative Staff for their hard work in
preparing for the audit.

Airport Manger Pomeroy reported on the following.

o A scope of work has been received from Hughes Aerospace for the Instrument
Approach Improvements project at an estimated 9-12-month completion time and
a cost of $193,000. Airport Manager Pomeroy is currently discussing options
moving forward with stakeholders/users.

¢ Airport Manager Pomeroy briefed the Board on the success of the Sun Airport Art
Committee (SAAC) reception that took place on Thursday, November 30t

» Airport Manager Pomeroy is researching options for replacement of the Air Traffic
Control Tower (ATCT) and he will provide a document for the Board's review that
contains alternatives and estimated costs.

+ Coordination efforts are in place with Airport users regarding new winter airspace
procedures that will be implemented by the FAA Air Route Traffic Control Center
(ZLC) in Salt Lake City from December 20t to January 8™ and on an as-needed
basis for holiday weekends.

e The Inaugural Flight Reception for the non-stop Chicago route will take place on
December 231 at the passenger terminal main lobby.

« Airport Manager briefed the Board on anticipated presentations scheduled for the
January meeting including, the accountant/auditor presentation of the Financial
Statement and Audit for the year ended September 30, 2017, the Rates &
Charges Analysis completed by Ricondo & Associates, and the first public
reading of the revised Ground Transportation Service Provider (GTSP)
Regulation 94-1.

Board Member Fairfax congratulated everyone involved in the SAAC reception and
artwork rotation and encouraged the Board to peruse the new artwork.

Board Member Schoen also thanked everyone involved in the SAAC artist rotation
and reception. He also inquired why it was necessary to have three readings for the
revised GTSP Regulation 94-1.

Airport Attorney Laski responded that a previous FMAA Board created a reguiation
that requires three public readings in order to adopt a new regulation.

Board Member Schoen recommended that a revision of the Board regulations to
modify the readings requirement be added to the January Agenda.



V. AIRPORT STAFF BRIEF

VI. NEW BUSINESS

VIl. CONTINUING BUSINESS

FMAA Regular Mesting — 12/05/17

A.

Noise Complaints (See Brief)

Board Member Fairfax asked if it was possible to allow commercial airlines to depart
to the North rather than stage on the taxiway or ramp area at the north end of the
runway to wait for favorable wind conditions. This could relieve some of the negative
impact on nearby residents.

Airport Manager Pomeroy responded that Delta Airline’s operational specification do
not allow departures to the North.

Profit & Loss, Budget Performance Summary, ATCT Traffic Operations Count
and Enplanement Data (See Brief)

Airport Commercial Flight Interruptions (See Brief)

Review Correspondence (See Brief)

ACTION AND Public Comment

a. Consideration of acceptance of ITD Aeronautics FY 2018 Idaho Airport Aid
Program Grant (See Brief & PPT)

Airport Manager Pomeroy briefed the Board on the receipt of an ITD Aeronautics
Grant offer of $25,000 for FY 18 and requested that the Board consider
approving execution and acceptance of the grant.

MOTION: Made by Vice Chairman Greenberg to allow execution
of the FY '18 ITD Aeronautics Grant Offer by the
Chairman as well as the Blaine County
Commissioners and City of Hailey as co-sponsors.
Seconded by Board Member Fairfax.

PASSED UNANIMOUSLY

b. Conslderation of date change of January FMAA meeting from January 2,
2018 to January 9, 2018 (See Brief & PPT)

Airport Manager Pomeroy asked the Board to consider a date change for the
January meeting to accommaodate the consultants travel schedule for the Board
presentations.

The Board agreed to reschedule the January 2, 2018 Board Meeting to January
9, 2018 and directed Staff to make the proper notifications.

Updates and Discussion
a. NONE

Construction and Capital Projects
a. ACTION and Public Comment
i. NONE
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b. Updates and Discussion

Runway Pavement Maintenance (See Brief & PPT)

Airport Manager Pomeroy updated the Board on the Runway Pavement
Maintenance project and commented that the Airport will be closed on June
5th from 8:15 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. and June 6" from 8:15 a.m. to 5 p.m. He noted
that this schedule will have minimal impacts to the airlines as it will allow the
Delta flight to arrive in the evening and depart the following morning.

Terminal Air Carrier Apron and Parking Lot Improvements (See Brief &
PPT)

Airport Manager Pomeroy briefed the Board on the status of the Terminal Air
Carrier Apron and Parking Lot Improvements project.

Board Member Fairfax asked if replacement of the parking lot gates and
ticketing equipment is still scheduled for completion this fall.

Airport Manager Pomeroy responded that Staff has not received a cost
estimate or delivery date from the equipment manufacturer, Amano, who is
working with The Car Park on the proposed equipment, and does not
anticipate installation by the winter season.

B. Airport Planning Projects {See Power Point Presentation)
a. ACTION and Public Comment

NONE

b. Updates and Discussion

Environmental Assessment for Runway Protection Zone and
Obstruction Removal (See Brief & PPT)

Airport Manager Pomeroy informed the Board that he will not be requesting
approval of Environmental Assessment Draft Chapters 1 — 4 at this meeting
as the comments received from the FAA are still being reviewed and will
instead seek approval of the revised Chapters at the January or February
Board Meeting.

T-O Engineer Environmental Project Manager, Joe Guenther briefed the
Board on the progress of the EA.

Vice Chairman Greenberg asked if the analysis of historic places near the
Airport had miss-identified the Pound Homer residence as that of Ezra Pound.
He also inquired about the ranking system for the Whitebark Pine species that
are listed as numbers 1 and 3 in the table.

Airport Consultant Guenther responded that the Pound Homer residence was
miss-identified as the Pound Homer house and should be identified as the
Ezra Pound house. He also commented that the species ranking system is
specific to Blaine County; the County has both highly protected and
unprotected species of plants and animals; and, highly protected species do
not occur on the project site.

Airport Manager Pomeroy expressed his frustration with the unanticipated
FAA legal review that has resulted in a delay for the project; however, he
assured the Board that the FAA is aware that this project needs to be
completed as scon as possible.
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C. Misc.

Airport Noise Modeling - New Noise Modeling Results from Landrum &
Brown (See Brief & PPT)

Airport Manager Pomeroy briefed the Board on the results of the Airport Noise
Modeling study conducted by Landrum & Brown.

The Board discussed technical aspects of the noise modeling report including
clarification of impacts at the detailed grid point locations (G1 and G2), federal
noise thresholds, and developing a list of mitigation options available to the
Board.

Airport Manager Pomeroy was asked about potential mitigation options
available to the Board and responded that he is unsure of the best options
moving forward as options are limited in our constrained environment.

Airport Manager Pomeroy recommended to the Board that he contact
Landrum & Brown to ask for their guidance and input based on their extensive
experience as airport noise specialists relative to similar situations at other
airports.

The Board concurred with Airport Manager Pomeroy's recommendations.

a. ACTION and Public Comment

i. Consideration of acceptance of Parking Lot Management Agreement with

The Car Park (See Brief & PPT)

Airport Manager Pomeroy informed the Board that comments and a redline
version of the Parking Lot Management Agreement had been received from
The Car Park and have been reviewed by Legal Counsel as well as the Board
Finance/Lease Committee. Airport Manager Pomeroy requested that the
Board consider approval of the Management Agreement pending minor
revisions that need to be made by Legal Counsel, as well as negotiation of the
Schedufe of Fees. ‘

MOTION: Made by Board Member Schoen fo approve the
Parking Lot Management Agreement contingent upon
Legal Counsel review, minor revisions and fee
negoftiations. Seconded by Vice Chairman Greenberg.

PASSED UNANIMOUSLY

b. Updates and Discussion

FMAA Amended Regulation 94-1 regarding Ground Transportation
Service Providers at the Airport (See Brief & PPT)

Airport Manager Pomeroy briefed the Board on the status of the Draft
Amended GTSP Regulation 94-1 that was presented to the Board at the
November meeting.

Chairman Keirn asked if Airport Staff examined the mechanical condition of
the cars as well as the tires as specified in the Regulation.

Airport Manager Pomeroy responded that Staff does ensure the vehicles
operate as specified in the Regulations.



FMAA Regular Meeting — 12/05/17

Board Member Schoen asked how Transportation Network Companies
{TNCs) are identified and expressed his disappointment in the Airport’s
inability to regulate such entities like other taxi and limousine services.

Airport Attorney Laski responded that the Airport may be able to identify TNC
operators by offering preferential parking at the Airport in exchange for
identifying themselves with an Airport-issued sticker. He commented that
while this may provide a temporary solution, lobbying the state legislature to
modify the statute to exclude airports from the prohibition against local
jurisdictions regulating TNCs is a long-term solution.

Vice Chairman Greenberg asked how the Airport benefits from being able to
identify TNC operators and if having them operate at the Airport without
regulation is a security issue. He also requested that Airport Attorney Laski
send him the proposed language revision to allow the County Commissioners
to send the corresponding language to the 1daho State legislative
representatives.

Airport Attorney Laski responded that having the ability to identify TNCs would
prevent local taxi companies from operating as TNCs to avoid Airport
Regulations.

Airport Manager Pomeroy suggested that lobbying efforts be initiated with
other airports in the state.

Chairman Keirn directed the Airport Manager to provide the Board with a
refined copy of the regulation.

Communications Request for Proposals (RFP) (See Brief & PPT)

Board Member Schoen briefed the Board on the status of the
Communications RFP and the RFP Committee’s review of the document. He
reported that Airport Manager Pomeroy is currently producing a template for a
communications plan and scope of services that will be presented to the
Board for review.

Vice Chairman Greenberg asked Board Member Schoen if the Fiy Sun Valley
Alliance is responsible for marketing outside the area while the Airport is
responsible for local marketing.

Board Member Schoen responded that in the current RFP, the Board's priority
is the local market.

Board Member Cooley commented that marketing has different aspects and
that local advertising efforts to reintroduce or rebrand the Airport to the
community are important.

Airport Manager Pomercy commented that promoting the Airport within the
community in addition to general marketing is the current goal.

Board Member McCleary asked what the process is for obtaining RFPs and
what the anticipated timeline is. She also asked if the Communications
Contracts typically have a term of one year.



Airport Manager Pomeroy responded that this engagement would be treated
as a professional service contract and RFPs would hopefully be obtained from
various entities. He answered that the selection would be based on received
proposals and the contract would likely be for a term of 3 years.

VIiil. PUBLIC COMMENT No public comment was made.
IX. EXECUTIVE SESSION - MOTION: Made by Vice Chairman Greenberg to enter into
I.C. §74-2086 (c)(f) executive session pursuant to idaho Code §74-206

paragraph (c) to acquire an interest In real property
and paragraph (f) to communicate with legal counsel
to discuss legal ramifications for controversy
imminently likely to be litigated. Seconded by Board
Member Schoen.

ROLL CALL VOTE:

Chairman Fairfax Yes
Vice-Chairman Kelrn Yes
Board Member Greenberg Yes
Board Member Schoen Yes
Board Member Haemmerle Yes
Board Member McCleary Yes
Board Member Cooley Yes
PASSED UNANIMOUSLY

X. ADJOURNMENT

The December 5, 2017 Regular Meeting of the Friedman Memorial Airport Authority
was adjourned at approximately 7:25 p.m.

Lawrence Schoen, Secretary

* Additional resources/materials that should be reviewed with these meeting minutes include but are not limited to the Friedman
Memorial Airport Authority Board Packet brisfing, the PowerPoint presentation prepared for this meeting and any referenced
atftachments.
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ATTACHMENT 5

KAPLAN KIRSCH ROCKWELL

semi-annual
alrport law digest
2077 year In review

WO, 27

As s0 often happens with a change in adm\nistiation, the federal government saw cansiderable upheaval
in 2017 Many federal agencies, including FAA, found themselves short-staffed and adjusting to a
change in'‘political policies. A number of senior agency executives saw the new administration as an
apportunity to leave the FAA to take new positions within the agency. That being said FAA saw fewer
changes than many other federal agenoies in part because the Administrator’s termi does not expire until
January 2018 Administrator Huerta is due to'leave his position in early January, so thera will be at least an
Acting Admimistrator to begin the new year Notwithstanding the White House order that discolirages new
reguilation the new Administrator s Ilkeh_.r ta prompt.at least some regulatory shifts at FAAIn 2018

This Digest contains short articles on sevaral important developments in airport law in 2017 and also
includes: a lisling of principal cases decided last year new FAA rules, policies. and guidance. and reports,
studias, and articles of particular interest to airpoert leaal professionals. Note that materials about drones (or
WAS) appear at the end of the Digest in & separate category Ve have attempted to/provide links to publically
available documents, and mos! otherdacuments are available via subscription services such as Westlaw or
LexisNexis. The Digest also includes a look-ahead to some of the important legal and palifical developments
We expect to see in 2018,

Vve hope you find this Diges! useful in yaur efforts 1o remind current in the always-evolving legal and
regulatary framework that governs airports.

2018 Kaplan Kirsch
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NextGen Implementation Sees Shakeup in Phoenix

FAA continues to work towards implementation of its Next Generation (NextGen) navigation system, an effort to improve
efficiency in so-called “Metroplexes.” The agency continues to face significant resistance from community groups in the form of
public comments and litigation across the couniry. While the experience in each metropolitan area has been different, FAA has
received considerable resident complaints that the changes in flight patterns wrought by NextGen have considerably increased
aircraft overflight noise in their communities without warning.

Affected communities scored a win in August 2017, when the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Cofumbia Circuit
issued a groundbreaking opinion vacating NextGen patterns serving Sky Harbor Intemational Airport in Phoenix, Arizona. The
court agreed with the City of Phoenix that FAA violated the National Environmental Policy Act, National Historic Preservation Act,
and Section 4(P) of the Department of Transportation Act when it issited new NextGen procedures without adequate public notice
and consultation. The City and FAA have since agreed to a seftiement that will require FAA to conduct additional community
outreach while temporarily reverting to the original, pre-NextGen routes.

Simiiar cases are pending across the country. In Washington, DC—one of the first Metroplexes to be considered “complete”—
community groups sued FAA alleging that the federal environmental approval was obtained without sufficient public invoivement.
The Govemor of Maryland has formally requested that the FAA revert to pre-NextGen fiight patterns and has threatened litigation
if the agency does not acquiesce. Another lawsuii is pending in Southemn Califomia. While the Phoenix case was factually and

legally unique in many respects, communities nationwide have taken the D.C. Circuit decision as a signal that litigation over
NextGen procedures is ah effective tool for achieving relief. [t remains to be seen the extent fo which the Phoenix litigation wili
influence these other pending cases and, more importantly, what procedural changes FAA implements as a result of lessons
from that case. The agency has informally taken a pause in implementation of its Metroplex plans as it assesses how to involve

the public in NextGen more generally.

Santa Monica Settlement Agreement Faces
Resistance

A year ago, in January 2017, the City of Santa Monica and
FAA announced an historic setlement agreement that resolved
decades of litigation and confroversy over the future of Santa
Mgnica Airport (SMO) by, among other things, allowing the City
to reduce SMO's runway by almost one-third of its length in the
immediate future and to close SMQ entirely after 2028. We
reviewed this settlement agreement in depth on page 5 of our
June 2017 Semi-Annual Airport | aw Digest and noted that the
National Business Aviation Association (NBAA) has challenged
FAA's authority to enter into the consent decree.

Since Juna, the brigfing in the NBAA case has concluded, and
oral argumants will likely be scheduled for sarly 2018, In addition,
a local citizens' group chaltenged the City's decision to enter inte
the consent agreement, arguing that the City violated state open
meetings laws. After briefly granting a lemporary resfraining ordar
that prohibited the City from shortening the runway, a federal
district court dismissed the case in mid-December. Like virtually
every decision concerning SMO, # is likely that the selilament
agreament will i3 subject to flure litigation.

< 2018 Kapian K{rseh & Rodkwell LLR | Kaplankirschicorh’

impact of Executive Orders Still Unclear

On page 2 of our June 2017 Semi-Annual Airport Law
Digest, we discussed at length the President's various
Executive Orders aimed at reducing regulations,
streamlining federal environmental approvals, and
recrganizing the federal government. The President
added ancther Executive Order in August, directing
federal agencies to explore ways to streamline
environmental approvals with a specific focus on
infrastruciure projects. Thus far, it is unclear how these
Executive Orders will influence airport projects. Past
efforts to streamline environmental reviews have met
with mixed success and have, in some cases, infroduced
additional paperwork without real improvement in the
environmental process. However, with the possibility of
both FAA reauthorization and an infrastructure package
on the horizon, these Executive Orders may become
important tools in expediting approvals for new ajrport
projects. This wili become is an especially important
arena in coming years as airport sponsors face mammoth
infrastructure needs after almost a decade of modest
airport development.
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New Kid in the Air: FAA Will Have a Fresh
Administrator in January

FAA Administrator Michael Huerta's term expires on January 7, 2018,
and thus far, there has been no indication if the President has any
candidates for a permanent replacement. In late June, Dan Elwell
was swomn in as the FAA Deputy Administrator, and he is set to
become the Acting Administrator upon Huerta's departure, Among
other important issues, the next Administrator will shape agency policy
on NextGen, UAS, and air traffic control reform. The Administrator
is also likely to lead the agency through the reauthorization process.
it is also possible that the President will appoint a permanent
replacement for the vacant Associate Administrator for Airports
position, which has been held in an acting capacity by Winsome
Lenfert since the departure of Eddie Angeles over one year ago.

Waiting for Go(DOT): Long-Awaited Federal Rules Still
On Hold

Since taking office in January, the President has made regulatory
rollbacks a prominent part of his agenda. DOT and FAA have
followed suit and have yet to issue a number of expected rules that
are of particular interest to airport sponsors and local governmants.
As one prominent example, FAA rescinded its draft Passenger
Faciiity Charge (PFC) Order on November 4, 2016, and there has
been no apparent movement to reissue a new draft or final Order,
FAA also published a Supplemental Notice of Proposed Rulemaking
for Safety Management System (SMS) for Certificated Airports nearly
18 months ago. The final SMS rule was initially expected in early
2017, but that timeline has been extended muitiple times, and it is
now unclear when, if ever, a final rule may be published. Finally, in
mid-2016, FAA issued operational regulations for unmanned aircraft
systems (UAS) at 14 C.F.R, Part 107. 14 C.F.R. § 107.39 specifically
prohibits the operation of UAS over maost people, and FAA has stated
that regulations which would permit such operations are forthcoming.
While no rute has been published, there has been some movement
on this issue in the form of FAA's UAS Integration Pilot Program. In
the meantime, UAS operators may continue to apply for a waiver

of this prohlbition. New and clarified regulations on UAS remote
identification and possible air traffic control for UAS are also being
held, Airport spensors should continue to watch out for these and
other federal rules.

L Annual Basics of
t+| Airport Law Workshop
™| and 2018 Legal Update

COMING THIS FALL [
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Kick the Can Down the Road:
Congress Again Confronted with
Expiration of FAA Authorization

When FAA authorization was set to expire

in September 2017 (after only a short
18-month reauthorization), there was
expected to be fierce debate on the poiential
privatization of air traffic control, a rollback
of FAA authority to regulate non-aeronautical
development on airports, the potential to
raise {or uncap) the PFC authorization, and
other topics of importance. While some of
that debate did occur, Congress instead
saw the clock winding down and elected

to punt the discussion by extending FAA's
authorization through March 2018. In the
coming months, Cengress will again be
presented with these tough issues, and
industry groups such as ACI-NA and AAAE
expect to play a major role. While short-
term extensions are not unusual (the last
reauthorization came after 23 short-term
extensions), the current Congressional
majority is likely to exert significant pressure
on policy issues in advance of the 2018
elections. That being said, Congress has
not shown great ability to tackle politically
complex and divisive issue so a further
shori-term extension is possible. (While
short-term extensicns aflow FAA and the AIP
program to continue, short-term extensions
of less than one year can play havoc with
AlP-funded projects since airport sponsors
cannot responsibly plan for funding multi-
year projects when AlP funding levels are
only established for 2 few months at a time.)
The recent news of House Transportation

& Infrastructure Committee Chalrman

Rep. Bill Shuster's impending retirement
adds another layer of uncertainty to the
reauthorization process.
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White House Promises Infrastructure Plan for January

Throughout the first vear of his term, the President has continued to state that he belioves the country should invest in
infrastructure, including roads, bridges, and airports. To date, there has been litte in the way of detzii about or action on these
issues outside of a six- Eact Sheet associated with the 2018 budget published last May.

However, the White House announced in early December that it planned to deliver an jnfrastructure plan to Conaress in
January 2018, stating that it will outline the President’s principles and priorities for infrastructure development. It is expacted
that any such plan will be heavily weighted towards encouraging private investment while deemphasizing direct federal funding.
In addition, it is unclear if the infrastructure plan will be designed to utilize any elements of the President’s Executive Orders on
streamlining federai environmental approvais {see above).

Regardless of how it is funded, the infrastructure initiative will undoubtedly prove important for airpert sponsors as they
simultaneously face a serious backlog of capital investment and a rapidly growing interest in private sector investment. Many
airports have taken their own inifiative In seeking private investment—privatization efforts at Westchester County (NY), Kansas
City (MO), and St. Louis {MO) have recelved some of the greatest press attentivn—and those efforis are expected to intensify
with a federal infrastructure initfative.

Noise, What Noise?

Ag 1 result of the coincidence of many factors (e.g., Mexifien implementation, air treffic growth, real estate encroachment),
alrports who have noticed noise problems gradually decrease since 2000 are now realizing an increase in noise complaints
and commtmnity outery. This dynamic has been especially dramatic at general aviation airports, which were the last to see the
phase out of the noisiest jets and were the fast to see growth after the end of the Great Recession, FAA is looking at modifying
hew it reports noise impacis for NextGen and is in the midst of 2 multi-year study on if their decades-year-old reliance on the
DAL metric and the 65 deacibel threshold remain appropriate loday. There should be new developments in both areas in 2078,
with or without new litigation.

Court Decisi

Precmplion. SiverWing at Sandpoint, LLC v. Bonner Cly., No. 15-35589 (consolidated), 2017 U:S. App. LEXIS 21870 (9th Cir.
Nov. 1, 2017} (affirming district court decision holding that plaintiffs state law claims of breach of good faith were preempted by
faderal iaw because the sponsor was acting to comply with federal ebligation, and also that the plaintiffs § 1883 claims failed for
similar reasons).

Regulatory Takinas. Dryden Oaks, LLC v. San Disgo Cly. Reg'l Airport Auth., 16 Cal. App. 5th 383 (as modified Oct. 19, 2017)
{affirming triat court grant of summary judgment for defendant where plaintiff alleged a regulatory taking based on the sponsor's
adoption of an Airpor: Land Use Compatibility Plan, but where the City had actual zoning authority).

Labor Law_and Preemption. Alrline Serv. Providers Assn. v. LA, World Airports, 873 F.3d 1074 (Sth Cir. Oct. 16, 2017) (holding
that a City policy requiring airport service providers to enter into “labor peace agreements™ with employee organizations upon
request was not precmpted by federal law because the City was acting as a market participant).

Preemption. Tweed-New Haven Airport Auth. v. Jepsen, No, 3:15-cv-01731, 2017 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 162356 (D. Cont, Sept. 30,
2017) (holding that a Connecticut statute limiting the length of a runway was not preempted by federa! aviation safety laws).

NextGen Flight Procedures. Ciy of Phoenix v. Huerta, 869 F.3d 963 (D.C. Cir Aug. 28, 2017) (striking down new NextGen routes
bacause FAA did not adequately perform appropriate envirenmental or historical review).

Envirenmental Review. Bames v. FAA, 865 F.3d 1266 (9th Cir. Aug. 3, 2017} {denying petition for review and finding that FAA did
not act arbitrariiy and capriciously by accepting a supplemental environmental assessment and issuing a FONS! for a new runway
project}.

Airline Seats. Flyers Rights Educ. Fund, Inc. v. FAA, 864 F.3d 738 (D.C. Cir. July 28, 2017) (requiring FAA to reconsider earlier
decision not to promulgate regulations on size of airline seats because the agency provided no evidence to support that decision).

CONTINUED ON PAGE 5
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Preemption and Govemance. Jackson Mun. Airport Auth. v. Bryant, No, 18-cv-248, 2017 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 115839 (S.D. Miss. July

25, 2017) (dismissing complaint of local airport authority that afleged state statute transferring governance of the airport {o a state
entity was preempted by federal law).

Contracts Clause. Gary Jet Ctr., Inc. v. AFCO AVports Mgmt. LLC, 863 F.2d 718 {7th Cir. July 13, 2017} {dlsmissing allegations
of Constitutional Contracts Clause violations where sponsor enacted minimum standards that required FBO to pay certain fees to
sponsor in contravention of the sponsor-FBO lease because other remedies were available).

Use Restrictions and ANCA. Town of E, Hampfon v. Friends of the E. Hampton Airporl, Inc., 137 S. Ct. 2295 (June 28, 2017)
(denying petition for certiorari in review of 2nd Circuit decision holding that Town's use restrictions were enacted in violation of the
procadural requirements of ANCA),

Jakings and Exhaustion of Remedies. Hadar v. Broward Cly., No. 16-14569 (11th Cir. May 31, 2017) (unpublished) {affirming

district court dismissal of complaint alleging taking by aircraft overflights where plaintiff had not availed himself of available state
remedies;).

Crant Assurances. Viefnamm Helicopters v. Cnty. of Contra Costa, No. 17-cv-01743-MMC, 2017 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 49728
{N.D. Cal. Mar. 31, 2017) (denying motion for temporary restraining order where plaintiff alleged airport sponsor was preparing to
lease hangar in violation of Grant Assurances and where Part 16 complaint was pending).

Settlements. United States ex rel. Shepard v. Tippetts, No. 13-cv-00736-CMA, 2017 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 27083 {D. Colo. Feb. 27,
2017) (over objections by qui fam relators, approving setllement between FAA and Grand Junction Regional Airport Authority
regarding possibly fraudulent statements made to FAA in application for grant funds).

Cate Allocation. City of Dallas v. Delta Airlines, Inc., 847 F.3d 279 (5th Cir. Feb. 2, 201 7}, reh'g en banc denied (affirming district
court grant of preliminary injunction regarding gate allocation at Love Field following the expiration of certain provisions of the
Wright Amendment).

Area Navigation. Citizens Assn. of Georgetown v. FAA, No. 15-1285 (D.C. Cir. oral argument scheduled Jan. 11, 2018) (challenging
RNAV procedures in the D.C, Metroplex area).

AirTours. Pub. Employees for Envt'l Responsibility v. FAA, No. 17-cv-2045 (D.D.C. motion to dismiss filed Dec. 14, 201 7) (seeking
injunctive relief requiring FAA to develop Air Tour Management Plans for various national parks and recreation areas).

Subject Matter Jurisdiction. Kaufmann v. FAA, No. 17-3152 (6th Cir. argued Dec. 5, 2017) {appeal of the district court decision
dismissing complaint alleging FAA noncompliance with NEPA and NHPA because complaint should have been flled in the clrcuit
court).

Airport Closure. Nat'l Bus. Aviation Ass’n v. Huerta, No. 17-1054 (D.C. Cir. respondent's final brief filed Dec. 4, 2017} (challenging
FAA settiement agreement with the City of Santa Monica that permits closure of the airport in 2028), see also Scolt v. Cily Council
for the City of Santa Monica, No. 17-07329 (C.D. Cal. Dec. 15, 2017) (dismissing complaint alleging that City Council failed to hold
a public hearing in violation of California state law before entering into settlement agreement).

Premises Liability. Afoa v. Port of Seattle, 189 Wn.2d 1015 (Oct. 5, 2017) (granting partial review of Washington Court of Appeals
decision holding that the Port had a “nondelegable duty to ensure a safe workplace” on the airfield at Seattle-Tacoma Airport, and
was therefore liable for the injuries of an independent contractor's employes).

Eirst Amendment. McDonnell v. City & Cnty. of Denver, No. 17-1071 (10th Cir. argued Aug. Sept. 28, 2017} (appealing the district
court order requiring City and County officials to “timely process a permit application” to protest Executive Order barring individuals
from seven predominantly Muslim countries from entering the United States at Denver Intemational Airport).

Gale Allocation. /n re. Compiiance with Federal Obligations by the City of Dalfas, Texas, FAA Docket No. 16-15-10
{Notice of investigation served Aug. 7, 2015) (FAA investigation into possible grant assurance violations reiated to a fallure to
accommodstle air carrier requesting gate space).

CONTINUED ON PAGE 8
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Administrative Degisi

Exglusive Rights. Mansfield Heliflight, Inc. v. City of Burlington, FAA Docket ilo. 16-14-08, Director’s Determination (Sepi. 5, 2017}
{granting sponsor’s motion for summary judgment because complainant had provided insufficient evidence of sponsot’s refusal
to negotiate for space at the airport).

Economic Nondiscrimination. ComAv, LLC v. S. Cal. Logisfics Airport Auth., FAA Docket No. 16-16-10, Diractor’'s Determination
{Aug. 21, 2017) (finding no exclusive rights or economic discrimination violations where compiainant was outbid for a particular
leasehold and still maintained business operations elsewhere on the airport).

Revenue Diversion. Air Transport Assn, of Am., Inc. v. Port of Portland, FAA Dockst No. 16-16-04, Director's Deterimination (Aug.
17, 2017) (finding no violation of Grant Assurance 25 where aidines alleged that airport sponsor had impermissibly charged tham
certain utility fees it then paid to the City of Portland).

Economic Nondiscrimination. Signature Flight Support Corp. v. Cty. of Orange, FAA Docket No. 16-17-02, Director's Determination
(July 21, 2017) (granting sponsor's motion for summary judgment cn allegations of Grant Assurance 22 violations associated with
a public RFQ and bid sefection process).

. Boggs v. City of Cleveland, FAA Docket No. 16-16-15, Order of the Director (Jan. 24, 2017) (dismissing
complaint alleging Grant Assurance violations where sponser chose not {o acquire private property shown on the Airport Layout
Plan).

Naticnal Defense Autherization Act for Fiscal Year 2018, Pub. Law No. 115-91 (signed Dec. 12, 2017} (reinstating FAA authority
to reguiate recreational drones).

Disaster Tax Relief and Airport and Airway Extension Act of 2017, Pub. Law No. 115-63 (signed Sapt. 28, 2017) {extending FAA
authorization through March 31, 2018}.

Consolidsted Appropriations Act, 2017, Pub. Law No. 115-31 {signed May 5, 2017) (extending federal government funding at
{argely current lavels through September 2017).

Alrport Law

DESK REFERENCE

ACLESS
Airport Law Desk Reference

(he Black
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Order 13 807,82 Fed Reg 40,463 (Aug 15, 2017) (dlrectlng federal agencles wﬂh enwronmental re\new and approval components.
in infrastructure projects to set performance goals and cooperate with other federal agencies in the environmental review procass).

Buy American and Hire American, Exec. Crder 13,788, 82 Fed. Reg. 18837 (Apr. 21, 2017) (requiring all executive branch agencies
to “scrupulously monitor, enforce, and comply with Buy American Laws, fo the extent they apply, and minimize the use of waivers,
consistent with applicable law”™).

Comprehensive Plan for Reorganizing the Executive Branch, Exec. Order 13,781, 82 Fed. Reg. 13959 {Mar. 16, 2017} ({requiring
that within 180 days, “the head of each agency shall submit to the Director [of the Office of Management and Budget] a proposed

plan to reorganize the agency, if appropriate, in erder {0 improve the efficiency, effectiveness, and accountability of that agency”).

Reducing Regulation and Confrolling Regulatory Costs, Exec, Order 13,771, 82 Fed. Reg. 9339 (Jan. 30, 2017) (requiring

that “whenever an executive department or agency publicly proposes for notice and comment or otherwise promulgates a new
regulation, it shall identify at least two existing regulations ic be repealed™}.

iti i i 4 jects, Exec. Order 13,766, 82 Fed. Reg.
8657 (Jan. 24, 2017) (settlng process by whlch pmject proponents can request 'hlgh priority” status for infrastructure projects and
petition the White House CEQ for expedited environmantal review).

Department of Transportation and FAA
Q&As — FBO Industry Consolidation and Pricing Practices (Dec. 7, 2017).

AC 150/5380-14A, Access fo Airports by Individuals with Disabilities (Dec. 6, 2017).
Notice and Raquest for Comments, FAA Aircraft Noise Complaint and Inquiry System (FAA Noise Portal), 82 Fed. Reg. 50,832

{Nov. 2, 2017} (seeking comment on FAA's intention to request OMB approval for a voluntary information collection regarding
aircraft noise compiainte).

Notice of Withdrawal of Proposed Rulemaking, Geographic-Based Hiring Preferences in Administering Federal Awards, 82 Fed.
Reg. 46,716 (Oct. 6, 2017).

Final Rule, Mﬂﬂ%ﬁhﬂdﬂdﬁ 82 Fed. Reg. 46,123 (Oct. 4, 2017).

ARP SOP 10.00, Admini s (Oct. 1, 2017).

Competition Plan Covered Airport List for FY 2018 (Aug. 2017).

AC 150/5100-17, Change 7, Land Acquisition and Relocation Assistance for Airport Improvement Program (AIP) Assisted Projects

(July 10, 2017).

Program Guidance Letter No. 17-01, Aircrafi
Reguirements (June 27, 2017).

AC 180/5000-17, Crifical Aircraft and Begular Use Determination (June 20, 2017)

Notice and Request for Input, Trans z re: i i equlati

Reg. 25734 (June 8, 2017} (“to solicit |nput from affected stakeholders to help the Department Identlfy requirements that the
Department imposes through rules, or interpretations found in policy stetements or guidance, that unjustifiably delay or prevent
completion of surface, maritime, and aviation transportation infrasfructure projests”).

ARP SOP 5.1, CATEX Determinations (June 2, 2017).

Order 8040.4B, Safety Risk Management Policy (May 2, 2017).
JO 7400.2L, Proced for Handling Aj atters {eff. Apr. 27, 2017).

Department of Homeland Security

Fact Sheet: Aviati rity Enhancement for Select Last Point of De) re Ai with ial Fligh
United States (Mar. 21, 2017) (banning large electronic devices on flights originating from 10 Middie Eastern airports).
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Fe | Entities

Council on Environmental Quality, Motice, Publication of Initial List of Actions Pursuant to Executive Order 13, 807, 82 Fed.
Reg. 43,226 (Sept. 14, 2017} (listing actions CEQ *will take to enhance and modemize the Federal environmental review and

authorization process™).

Amlgnsﬁeﬂesﬁe_d_tp_lmnm_e_Blak_Mﬂnagsmmt(Oct 18 2017)

Office of Inspactor General, Letie : i e
Business Case {Aug. 18, 2017) (staung thaft NextGen benef t estlmates are overly oplimistic”).

Key Staff Appointments (May 20, 2017) (listing recent senior political appointees to the Department}.
National Transportation Noise Map (showing noise impacts from airports and highways}.

vernment Accountabili ffice

nt, GAC-17-504T (Mar. 23, 2017).

Transportation Research Board. Airport C erative Research Proara

Legal Research Digests

Legal Research Digest 33: Qve ases (Oct. 2017).
Legal Research Digest 32: s (Oct. 2017).

i.agal Reseanch Digest 31: Preemption of Worker-Retenti Labor-Peace Agreements at Airports (Feb. 2017).
Reports

Report 151: Assessing Community Annoyance of Helicopter Noise (Nov. 2017).

Report 180: eling (Nov. 2017).
Report 177: Enhancing Airpo bilities (Oct. 2017).

Report 179: Di Health Concerns (Sept. 2017).
Report 176: Airports (Aug. 2017).

Report 178: Guidance for Usage of Permeable Pavement at Airports (Aug. 2017).

Report 175: Improving Intelligibility of Airport Terminal Public Addre: {July 2017).

Report 174: Green Stormwater Infrastructure, VYolume 1: Primer and Volume 2: Guidebook (June 2017).
Report 173: Use and Potential impacts of AFFF Containing PFASs at Airports (May 2017).

Report 172: Guidebook for Considering Life-Cycle Costs in Alrport Asset Procurement (Apr. 2017).
Report 171: i s (Apr. 2017).
Report 170: Guidebook for Preparing Public Nofification Programs at Airports (Apr. 2017).

CONTINUED ON PAGE 9
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Report 168: In eting the Results of Ai Water Monitoring (Mar. 2017).

Report 169: Q&ammsmmmu_&mm (Jan. 2017).

Report 168:
2017).

Report 167: Guidebook for Developing Ramp Control Facilities (Jan. 2017).
Synthesis Reports

Synthesis 83: Preparing Airports for Communicable Diseases on Arriving Flights (Sept.

2017).

s Synthesis 86: sportation Network C nies:
Operators (Aug. 2017),
Synthesis 85: Alfemative Fuels in Airport Fleets (Aug. 2617).
Synthesis §2: Us Socia [a to Inform rationa nse and Durin
an Airport Emergency (Aug. 2017).
Synthesis 81: F and B and Retail Operators: Costs jna Business

Airports (Aug. 2017).
Synthesis 80: Estimating Truck Trip Generation for Airport Air Cargo Activity (Aug. 2017).
Synthesis 79: Funding industrial Aviation {(July 2017).

Web-Only Documents

Web-Only Document 33: Assessing Aircraft Noise Conditions Affecting Student | earning—
Case Studies (Nav. 2017).

Web-Only Document 32: Improving AEDT Noise Modeling of Mixed Ground Surfaces (June

2017).

Web-Only Document 31:
Planning (Apr. 2017).
Web-Only Document 30: Dev nt of a Chemis dule for /AEDT

Predict NO, Concentrations (Mar. 2017).

General Articles

Kim Stevens, Anno s New Regional Admini ors, State Aviation Journal, Oct.
30, 2017.

Mike Ives, In a Warming World, Keeping the Planes Running, N.Y. Times, Sept. 30, 2017.

Kaplan Kirsch & Rockwell LLP, P3 Ai jocts: i jrport L (May
2017).

Alrports Council Infemnational — North America, Aj Infi N - 1
(Mar. 2017).

Environmental Law Institute, Regulatory Reform in the Trump Era (Mar. 2017).

00

#ProjectsThatKeepLifeMoving
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Unmanned Aircraft Systems

Decided Cases

Singer v. City of Newfon, No. 17-100071-WGY, 2017 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 153844 (D. Mass. Sept. 21, 2017) (finding local drone
ordinance requiring registration of drones and variocus operational restrictions preempted by federal law).

Taylor v. Huerta, 856 F.3d 1089 (D.C. Cir. May 18, 2017) (holding that FAA did not have authority fo promuigate regulations
requiring hobbyist drone owners to register with the agency, but staying enforcement pending a petition for rehearing); but see
National Defense Authorization Act of Fiscal Year 2018, Pub. Law No. 115-91 (signed Dec. 12, 2017) {teinstating FAA authority to

regulate recreational drones).

Boggs v. Merideth, No. 3:16-CV-DO00B-TBR, 2017 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 40302 (W.D. Ken. Mar, 21, 2017) (dismissing complaint
alleging the defendant shot down plaintiffs unmanned aircraft while over defendant's property for lack of subject matter jurisdiction
and stating that tort claims were propeily brought in state court).

Pending Cases

Elac. Privacy Info. Ctr. v. FAA, Case No. 16-1297 (D.C. Cir. Argument scheduled Jan. 25, 2018) (challenging FAA's decision not to
promulgate privacy-specific UAS regulations).
FAA Rules. Orders, and GuidanceRe tudies. and Atrticles

UAS Integration Pilol Program {anmounced as “an opporiunity for state, local, and fribal governments to partner wiih private sector
anfities, such as UAS operators or manufaciurers, o accelerate safe UAS integration”).

Proposed Federal Legislation

House Resolution 2930, Drane Innovation Aot of 2017 {intreduced June 18, 2017) (proposing to require the Secretary of Transportation
to devalop ndlicies on drone regulaiion It chopsistion with State and local governmenis while preserving tights to privacy and local
causss of action for espass, ate. )

Reports, Studies, apd Articies

Michael Laris, Federal drone advisory pane
&, 2017,

Alliance for System Safety of UAS through Research Excellence, UAS Airbore Collision Severity Evaluation Final Report (Nov. 2017).
'Bard College, Center for the Study of the Drone, Drone Registrations — A Preliminary Analysis (Nov. 2017).
FAA Drone Advisory Committee — Task Group 3, Tasking on Unmanned Aircraft Systems (UAS) Funding (Mar. 7, 2017).

and poor management’. The Washington Post, Nov.,
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KAPLAN KIRSCH & ROCKWELL'S airports practice is one of the largest and most experienced in the country. The Firm's
attorneys have counseled clients on issues associated with complex airport development and master planning projects, land use,
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with federal requirements. The Firm has represented clients throughout the nation in regulatory and legislative advocacy on a wide
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board
Friedman Memorial Airport Authority
Halley, Idaho

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying finandal statements of the Friedman Memoral Airport Authority
which comprise the statement of net position as of September 30, 2017, and the related statements
revenue, expenses and changes [n net position and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the finandal statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with acoounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this indudes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control. relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility Is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance: with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to finandal audits contalned In Govemnment Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the Unlted States. Those standards required that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from materal
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, Induding the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the finandial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the finandal statements In order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the clrcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s Internal control. Accordingly, we express no such oplnion. An audit also incdudes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Friedman Memorial Airport Authority, as of September 30, 2017, and changes in
finandal position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Prior Perlod Financial Statements

The financial statements of Friedman Memorial Airport Authority as of September 30, 2016, were audited
hy other auditors whose report dated February 1, 2017, expressed an unmodified opinion on those
statements.

Other Malters
Reguired Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 8 iIs presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, which considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inguiries, the basic financial statements and other
knowiedge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements, We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the Authority’s basic financial
statements taken as 2 whole. The schedule of revenue, expenditures and changes in net position —
budget and actual and reconciliation of budgetary basis to GAAP is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The schedule of revenue, expenditures and changes in net position — budget and actual and
reconciliation of budgetary basis to GAAP is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certaln additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standarde generally accepted In the United States of America.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 9,
2018, on our consideration of Friedman Memorial Airport Authority’s intemnal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of Its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report Is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over finandial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on Internal control over finandal reporting or on compliance. That report Is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Friedman Memorlal
Alrport Authority’s intemal control over financial reporting and compliance.,

Meridian, Idaho
January 9, 2018



M vs DI . | Analysi

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of the Friedman Memorial Airport Authority’s (the
Authority) financial performance provides an Introduction to the finandal statements for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2017. The information contained in the MD&A should be considered in conjunction with information
contained in the Authority’s financial statements.

Friedman Memorial Airport is located in the City of Hailey, within Blaine County. Blaine County is located in central
Idaho, in an area known as the Wood River Valley. The Big Wood River runs from north to south between the
Smoky, Pioneer and Boulder Mountains. Friedman Memorial Airport is located immediately south of the central
business district of Hailey and approximately two miles north of the City of Believue. State Highway 75 runs directly
adjacent to the east side of the Airport, southeast to northwest through the cities of Bellevue and Hailey, with
Ketchura/Sun Valley 11 miles to the north and Twin Falls 75 miles to the south.

As has been discussed in previous MD&A, beginning in fiscal year 2013, the Authority initiated substantial steps to
improve the existing airport. These improvements were the culmination of an aggressive approach to the
implementation of “Alternative 6”, which included an FAA Safety Risk Management study and the approval of five
Modification to Standards (MOS) to accommodate an achievable solution to the congressional mandated safety
standards at the airport by the end of calendar year 2015. These modifications consider and limit the size of aircraft
to those that currently utilize Friedman rather than making alterations that would fully achieve a C-III compliant
airport. $34 million doliars in improvements were completed at the airport by the end of fiscal year 2015 to meet this
mandate and incdude a standard Runway Safety Area (RSA), a full length paraliel Taxiway Bravo, and an expansion
of the airport passenger terminal and associated air carrier aircraft parking apron. Substantial construction was
complete by the end of the first quarter of fiscal year 2016. Additional improvements to the terminal were completed
in the first quarter of FY 17 when a new concession space was added to the departure lounge area.

As with fiscal year 2016, fiscal year 2017 proved to be a successful year for all three current air carriers that serve
the airport (Alaska, Delta, and United) in spite of one of the most harsh winters in 90 years in the Valley, Expanded
flight schedules saw an approximate 8% Increase in enplznements for the 2017 calendar year. Also exciting on the
air services front was the initiation of service of with the new Embraer E-175 next generation regional jet. This new
aircraft provides our customers an enhanced passenger service with increased seat space and overhead bin storage,
among other upgrades. The E-175 will replace the Bombardier CRI700 on certain routes. Also announced in late
FY2017 was the start of direct, limited air service between Friedman and Chicago O'Hare during the 2017-2018
winter season. This new service to Chicago adds a seventh dty to our direct air service in addition to Denver, Los
Angeles, Portland, Salt Lake City, San Francisco, and Seattie, With the assistance of a local non-profit air service
organization, the Authority is committed to maintaining and Improving air service at Friedman.

Operationally, fiscal year 2017 saw the Authority and staff continue to focus on maintenance and upkeep of our new
fadiities. Our new and expanded facilities again resulted in increased maintenance and operations (O&M) expenses.
As previously stated, adjustments in our budget to address these increased expenses are expected to continue into
fiscal year 2018. Due to the difficult winter, we also realized additional operations expenses in manpower,
equipment, and airfield maintenance materials, as & result of increased snow removal efforts. This has also been
accounted for in our 2018 budget.

The Authority has been committed to partnering with the community and the FAA to improve air service and safety
at the current site while also maintaining that the airport may need to be relocated in the future. This philosophy has
been deemed the “Dual Path Forward” and is the preferred approach to addressing the airport within our
community. The dual path approach supports the communities desire to maintain or increase alr service, improves
safety and reliability at the existing airport and enables the Authority to continue researching other alternatives.

The Authority completed a Draft airport master plan and submitted it to the FAA in early FY2017. In addition to
studying and planning for the future at the existing site, the master plan also studled potential replacement sites and
include the development of a 20 year capital development plan with cost estimates for maintaining and enhancing



the current alrport as well as a replacement site. The cost estimate for a replacement site indicates significant local
fnvestment will be required. The Authority is committed to continue the endeavor to relocate the airport when and if
an acceptable site can be identified and funding can be secured.

Addressing the need to meet current air service demand at the existing site, the Authority approved moving forward
with a substantial caplital improvement project in FY2018. The project will be completed in two phases. Phase one
will be a reconfiguration of the airport’s access road system and passenger terminal parking lot which will be
completed in the second and third quarters of FY218. Phase two will indude the construction of a forth air carier
airaaft parking spot to accommodate our growing air service and will be completed In the fourth quarter and flrst
quarter of FY 2018/2019 respectively. The total project cost will be approximately $4 million split between FAA grant
funds and a significant amount of local funds for both FAA grant match and FAA Ineligible portions of the project,

Looking ahead, the airport master plan has identified additionai priorities for the Authority to focus on induding
potential acquisition of land south of the airport for runway approach protection areas and Aircraft Rescue
Firefighting (ARFF) equipment acquisition. To this end, the Authority has contracted with a consultant and Is
coordinating with the land owner to complete a land acquisition/obstruction removal environmental assessment.

All financial and operational indications are that the overall economy continues to stabilize and improve. Fiscal year
2017 continued to reflect recovery and continues to demonstrate the need for a viable airport with reliable air service
In our community. Historically, inconvenlence due to frequent flight cancellations and diverslons due to less than
ideal instrument approach capabilities at the airport is an often-stated concern and the reason for travelers to be
reluctant to return to SUN. This remains a concern for the Authority. Alaska Airlines was able to demonstrate safety
and accessibility improvements of new approach technology with the implementation of their new proprietary
instrument approach procedure this last winter allowing-them to land in very low ceiling and visibility conditions,
even during this bad, past winter. The Authority continues to seek a similar solution for other airport users.

The Authority’s financlal statements are prepared on the accrual basls [n accordance with generally acoepted
accounting principles promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The Authority is
structured as a single enterprise fund with revenues recognized when earmned, not when received. Expenses are
recognized when incurred, not when paid. See the notes to the finandal statements for a summary of the Authority’s
significant accounting policies. '

Following this MD&A are the basic financial statements of the Authority, together with the notes, which are essential
to a full understanding of the data contained In the finandal statements. The Authority's basic finandal statements
are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Authority’s finances.

The Statements of et Fosition present information on all the Authority’s assets, deferred outflows of resources,
llabilities, deferred Inflows of resources and net position. Over time, increases or decreases In net position may serve
as useful Indicators of whether the Authority’s financial position Is improving or deteriorating.

The Statements of Revenus, Expenses and Changes in Net Position present information showing how the Authority’s
net position changed during the year. All changes In net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows In future periods.

The Statements of Cash Flows relates to the flows of cash and cash equivalents. Consequently, only transactions
that affect the Authority’s cash accounts are recorded in this statement, A recondiliation Is provided at the bottom of
the Statements of Cash Flows to assist in understanding the difference between cash flows, operating activities and
operating income.



In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents the Schedule of
Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Net Position Budget & Actual and the Recondiliation of Budgetary Basis to
AAP as supplementary information.

i al Analysi A ri Who!
The changes in net position aver time serve as a useful indicator of the Authority’s finandal position. The Authority’s
assets exceeded liabilities by $56,556,793 as of September 30, 2017, a decrease of $1,194,951 from September 30,
2016,
A condensed summary of the Authority’s finandal position at September 30™ is shown below.

Increase Percentage

2017 2016 (Decrease) Change

ASSETS:

Current Assets $ 3,013,364 $ 2,479,364 $ 534,000 21.5%
Capital Assets 53,941,684 55,637,540 {1,695,856) -3.0%
Total Assets 56,955,048 58,116,904 {1,161,85¢) -2.0%
LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities 262,225 268,928 {6,703} -2,5%
Noncurrent Liabllities 136,030 96,232 39,798 41.4%
Total Liabilities 398,255 365,169 33,095 9.1%
NET PCSITION:
Invested In capltal assets £3,941,684 55,637,540 (1,695,856) -3.0%
Restricted 7,163 5,776 1,387 24.0%
Unrestricted 2,607,946 2,108,428 499,518 23.7%
Net Position $56,556,793 $57,75L,744 $(1,194951) -2.1%

The largest portion of the Authority’s net position is invested in capital assets (e.q. land, buildings, improvements
and equipment). No outstanding debt is attributable to these assets. The Authority uses its capital assets to provide
services to its aviation partners, passengers and fixed-base operators, This requirement includes the obligation to
preserve and maintain airport fadilities in 2 safe and serviceable condition and includes the responsibility to operate
the aeronautical facitities and common use areas for the benefit of the public. Consequently, these assets are not
avallable for future spending.

The Authority’s unrestricted net position is available to meet current and future obligations. The Authority anticipates
that these funds will be needed to pay future capltal expenditures and maintain adequate levels of working capital,

The Autherity’s restricted net position represents an amount required to be set aside as a performance bond by a
communications use lease with the Bureau of Land Management (BLM) and Passenger Facility Charges (PFC)
collections. The BLM funds are restricted as they must be held for the duration of the lease which terminates on
December 31, 2031. The PFC funds are collected and are restricted te funding designated capital projects.



A condensed summary of the Authority’s revenue, expenses and changes in net position for the fiscal year ending
September 30% is shown below.

2017 2016 Increase Percentage
{Degrease) Change
Operating Revenue $3,282,526 ¢ 3,131,310 $ 151,216 4.8%
Operating Expenses 5,455,752 4,764,942 690,810 14.5%
Operating (income/loss) {2,173,226) {1,633,632) {539,594) -33.0%
Non-operating Revenue (Expenses) 368,516 310,445 58,071 18.7%
Capital Contributions — 609,759 1,322,351 _ (712,592} -53.9%
Changes in net position (1,194,951) (836) {1,194,115) -142,836.7%
Beginning net position 57,751,744 57,752,580 (836) 0.0%
Ending net position 456,056,793  $57.751.744 $(1,194.951) -2.1%

Operating revenue Increased 4.8% from the prior fiscal year. While Rents, fees, commissions and leases revenue
decreased by 6.7% from the prior year, all other operating revenue categories increased by 20.7% over the prior
year.

Operating expenses increased by 14.5% over the prior fiscal year. While all other operating expense categories
decreased by 11% from the prior year, repairs and maintenance increased by 120% over the prior year.

No amendments were made to the Authority’s Budgeted Revenue, Expenses and Changes In Net Position during the
fiscal year ending September 30, 2017. A summary of operating revenue and expenses based on the actual
budgetary basis is shown below.

Budoet - Actual Varlance

Total Operating Reverue $3,167,000  $3,282,526 § 115,526
Total Operating Expenses 2,836,838  _2,551,911 __ 284472
Operating Income (loss) $ 330617 § 730615 $ 399998

Actual resuits reported above may differ from the actual results as reported In the Statement of Revenue, Expenses
and Changes In Net Position for the following reasons:

1. Accruals of compensated absences are not budgeted but are reported for GAAP.

2. Depreciation expense is not budgeted but is reported for GAAP.

3. Interest earned on PFCs is budgeted as Interest income but is reportable as PFC revenue for GAAP,
4, Capltal asset purchases are budgeted as an expense but are reported as an asset for GAAP.

The Authority’s budget philosophy Is to conservatively estimate revenue while, at the same time, making certain that
budgeted operating expenses are not understated.

The capital assets of the Authority are those assets that are used in the performance of the Authority’s functions. At
September 30, 2017, net capital assets totaled $53,941,684. The Authority acquired or constructed more than $1.1
million In capltal assets this year as detailed in Note 3 of the Notes to the Basic Financlal Statements.



Long- iabiliti

The only long-term lizhility is for compensated absences, which represents vacation, comp time and 25% of sick
leave, which has been accrued but will be paid in future periods as used or on termination of employment. The total
long-term liability at September 30, 2017, was $136,030. Currently, the Authority has no other long-term debt
outstanding nor are there any plans to incur any long-term debt.

R rm
This financial report is designed to provide the Authority’s Board, management, investors, areditors and customers

with a general view of the Authority’s net position and results of operations. Questions concerning any information
contained In this report may be directed to the Airport Manager, 1616 Airport Circle, Hailey, ID 83333.



FRIEDMAN MEMORIAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

See Accompanying Notes fo Financial Statements

ENTERPRISE FUND
September 30, 2017 and 2016
ASSETS 2017 2016
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,584,261 $ 2,026,298
Operating accounts receivable 330,669 171,292
Due from other governments 82,774 271,041
Interest receivable 1,882 770
Prepaid expenses 8,615 4,187
Restricted cash and cash equivalents:
BLM 5,500 5,500
Passenger Facility Charges 1,663 276
Total Current Assets 3,013,364 2,479,364
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital assets:
Land 6,712,067 6,712,067
Construction in progress 3,052,836 12,603,136
Alrfield, buildings, equipment, improvements, plans and studies 84,790,576 54,552,526
74,555,478 73,867,729
Accumulated depreciation {20.813,795) (18,230,189}
Total Capital Assets 53,941,684 55,837,540
Total Assets 58,955,048 58,118,204
IIABILITIES
Current Liabilitles:
Trade accounts payable 58,627 68,621
Payable City of Hailey 2,618 2,488
Accounts payable for capital improvements 95,816 117,337
Accrued payroll and benefits 3,833 3,137
Customer deposits 1,400 1,000
Current portion of long-term accrued compensated absences 86,831 76,367
Total Current Liabilities ' 262,225 268,928
Noncurrent Liabllities:
Long-term accrued compensated absences 235,861 172,599
Currant portion of long-term accrued compensated absances {89,831) (76,367)
Total noncurrent liabilities 136,030 96,232
Total Liabilities 298,255 365,160
NET POSITION
invested in capital assets 53,941,584 55,637,540
Restricted 7,163 5,778
Unrestricted 2,607,946 2,108,428
Total Net Position $ 56,556,793 $ 57,751,744



FRIEDMAN MEMORIAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY

STATEMENTS OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

ENTERPRISE FUND

For the Years Ended September 30, 2017 and 2018

Operating Revenue:
Airlines
Automabile rerital
Auto parking
Rents, fees. commissions and leases
Fuel flowage fees
Other operating revenue
Total Operating Revenue

Operating Expenses:
Employee wages, benefits and taxes
Supplies
Utilities
Services and contracts
Repairs and maintenance
Insurance
Other operating expense
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

Operating income (Loss)
Nonoperating Revenue {Expenses):
Passenger Fzcility Charges
Interest income
Ggin {loss) on sale of fixed assels
Federal grant expenditures
Total Noroperating Revenue and (Expenses)
Income (Loss) before Capital Contributions
Capital Contributions
Change in Net Position

Net Position, Beginning of Year

Net Position, End of Year

2017 2016

$ 297,045 $ 266,364
674,879 595,082
267,875 197,501
1,693,219 1,814,634
335,960 254,836
13,548 1,993
3,282,526 3,131,310
1,461,200 1,313,193
91,345 200,607
140,975 120,081
345,773 571,626
325,798 148,038
62,331 58,768
187,750 153,340
2,840,580 2,199,285
5,455,752 4,764,942
{2,173,226) (1,633,632)
363,944 303,132
14,964 7,313
13,237 -
13,629 -
368,516 310,445
(1,804,710) (1,323,187)
609,759 1,322,351
(1,194,851) (836)
57,751,744 57,752,580

3 56556763

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements

$ 57,751,744
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FRIEDMAN MEMORIAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
ENTERPRISE FUND
For the Years Ended September 30, 2017 and 2016
2017 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING AGTIVITIES
Cash recaived from customers $ 3123548 § 3,101,538
Cash payments for employees' services and benefits (1,397,142} (1,499,549)
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (1,166,242) {1,437,492)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 560,165 164,495
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Opearting grant revenue - 194 206
Operating grant expenditures (13,629} -
Net cash provided (used} by noencapital financing activities {13,629) 184,206
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sales of capital assets 13,237 -
Acquisition and construction of capital assets {1,166,245) (4,700,138)
Grants and other amounts received for the purchase of capital assets 798,026 3,588,879
Passenger facility charges received for the purchase of capital assets 353,044 303,132
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities {1,038) (797.127)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment eamings 13,852 3,830
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 13,852 6,830
Net increase {decrease} in cash and cash equivalents 559,350 (431,596)
Balancas - beginning of the year 2,032,074 2,463,670
Balances - end of the yoar $ 2,691,424 $ 2|032.074
RECONCILIATION OF CASH BAILLANCES TO STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
Cash and cash equivalsnts § 2,584 261 $ 2,026,298
Restricted cash and cash equivalents:
BLM 5500 5,500
Passenger Facllity Charges . 1,663 276
Total cash balances on Statements of Net Position $ 2!591 i424 $ 2,032,074
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOsS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cperating income (loes) $ (2,173,226) $ (1,633,632
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depraciation 2,840,580 2,199,289
Change in assets and liabilities:
{Increase) decrease in operating accounis recelvable {159,377) (25,955)
(Increase} decrease in due from other governments (non-capital portion) - (2.819)
{Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses {2,428) (379}
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable trade (9,842) {184,5853)
Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll and benefits 796 (3.428)
Increase (decrease) in customer daposits 400 (1,000)
Increase (decrease) in accrued compensated absences 63,262 182,928
Total Adjustment and Changes 2,733,391 1,798,127
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 560,165 $ 164,495

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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Note 1.

FRIEDMAN MEMORIAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
1-A. Organization and Reporting Entity

Organization

Effective October 1, 1994, Blaine County, ldaho and the City of Hailey, Idaho entered into a Joint
Powers Agreement creating the Friedman Memorial Airport Autherity (Authority) for the purpose of
operating and managing airport activities in Blaine County, Idaho. The Authority is a public entity of the
State of ldaho and therefore the Authority's income is exempt from Federal and ldaho income taxes.
The Authorily is govemed by a seven-member board with three members representing Blaine County,
three members representing the City of Hailey and one member who Is unanimougly selected by the
other six members. The Authority has hired employees to provide for the day-lo-day operations and
management.

Pursuant to the Joint Powers Agreement, all buildings, improvements, facilities, equipment, and
personal property usad hy the Authority were conveyed by Biaine County and the City of Hailey to the
Authority for use and benefit of the Authorty and fitle thereof shall be held by the Authority. Upon
termination of this Agreement, title to 21l buildings, improvements, facilities, equipment and parsonal
property held by the Authority shall vest joinily in Blaine County and the City of Hailey.

Reporting Entity

Generally accepted accounting principles require government financial statements to include the
primary govemment aiwi its component units, Component units of a governmental entity are legally
separate entities for wivch the primary government is considered fc be financially accountable and for
which the nature an2 significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that
exclusion would causs e combined financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The primary
government is consicsrad to be financially accountable if it appoinis @ majority of an organization's
governing bedy and iriposes its will on that organization. The primary govemnment may also be
financially accountabls i an organization is fiscally dependent on the primary govemment, regardlass
of the authority of the organization’s governing board.

management has deismined that the Authority does not have component units. Accordingly, the
accompanying financiz! statements include only the oparations of the Friedman Memorial Airport
Authority.

1-B. Measurement Facits, Basis of Accounting

The Friedman idemarial Airport Authority's financial statements have been prepared using the accrual
basis of accounting. Lnder this method. revenue and receivables are recognized when services are
provided and expense and liabiiities are recorded at the time goods and services are received.

The Authority's accouriing policies conform to generally accepted accounting principles appiicabie to
proprietary funds of governmenal units. Proprietary funds use the economic resources measurement
focus. With this measuiement focus, all assets and liabiiities associated with the operalion of these
funds are included on the siatement of net assets.

Proprietary operating revenue, such as charges for services, result from exchange fransactions
associated with the principal activity of the operating unit. Exchange transactions are those in which
each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as interest or
capital contributions, result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities. Nonexchange
transactions, in which the Authority gives (or receives) value witheut directly receiving {(or giving) value
in exchange, include grants, donations and passenger facility charges (PFC’s). Revenue from grants
and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.
PFC's along with related interest eamings are recorded as deferred revenue until authorized for
matching payments on construction projects under an FAA approved Application to Use. Once
authorized to use, PFC receipts are recognized and recorded as nonoperating revenue in the year
collected,
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FRIEDMAN MEMORIAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

1-C. Assets, Liabilities and Equity

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash in bank accounts and
funds deposited in the State Treasurer's Local Govemment Investment Pool. Because the State
Treasurer's Local Government Investment Pooi is sufficiently liquid to permit withdrawal of cash at any
time without prior notice or penalty, equity in the pool is deemed to be a cash equivalent. These funds
are carried at cost which is not materially different than fair value.

Accounts Receivable
Based upon past experience, uncollectible receivables are deemed immaterial by management and no
allowance has been provided.

Prepaid ses ‘
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prapaid items.

Capital Assets )
Capital assets are stated at cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair market

value when received. Only assets with a value over $1,500 are capitalized. The Authority does include
the cost of all infrastructure assets In capital assets, Assets held under capital leases are recorded at
the lower of fair market value or the present value of fulure lease payments and amortized over the
estimated life of the asset. Depreciation is calculated by the siraightdine method over the estimated
useful life of the depreciable property as follows:

Building and improvements 4 {o 50 years
Airfield and general improvements 4 to 25 years
Office equipment ‘2o 10 years
Security / 3 to 20 years
Maintenance equipment and vehicles 2 to 20 years
Assessments, plans and studies 4 1o 20 years

Restricted Cash - BLM

This cash represents an amount required to be set aside as a performance bond by a communications
use lease with the Bureau of Land Management. These funds are restricted as they must be held for
the duration of the lease which terminates on December 31, 2031.

Restricted Cash — Passenger Facility Charges Funds
This cash represents Passenger Facility Charges (PFC) collections based on an approved FAA

application to “impose™ such charges on enplaned passengers at the Airport. These funds are
restricted to funding designated capital projects.

Use of Restricted Resources

The Authority’s policy is to first apply restricted resources when an eligible expenditure is made for
which both restricted and unrestricied net assets are available.

Budget
The Authority is required by state law to adopt an annual budget. The budgetary basis is accrual but
differs from the basis of accounting used for the financial statements in the following ways:

Accruals of compensated absences are not budgeted but are reported for GAAP.
Depreciation expense is not budgeted but is reported for GAAP.

Interest eamed on PFCs is budgeted as interest income but is reportable as PFC revenue for
GAAP.

Capital asset purchases are budgeted as an expense bul are reported as an asset for
GAAP.

B N
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Note 2.

FRIEDMAN MEMORIAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Compensated Absences
All employees receive 96 hours of sick leave per year with no maximum accrual. Vacation is

received based on years of service. Those having one to two years of service receive 80 hours of
vacation annually and the hours received increase 8 hours per year for every two years of service.
Compensated absences consist of accrued vacation, comp time and 25% of accrued sick leave
that would be paid upon termination of employment.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reporied amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.,

Reclassifications
Certain accounts in the prior vear financial statements have been reclassified for comparative

purposes to conform with the presentation in the cument year financial statements. The
reclassifications did not affect Net Position for the prior year.

1-D. Subsequent Events
Management has evaluated subseguent events through the date on the independent auditors’

report, the date on which financial statements were available to be issuad.

Deposits and Investments _
The following is a reconcitiation of tha Authority's depesit and investment balances as of September

30, 2017 and 2016:

2017 2018
Cash on hand s 5 % 50
Bank deposils 9,303 G,189
Repurchase agreament 274,119 430,852
State of ldaho Local Government
Investrent Paosl 2307 852 1,594,983

The Authorily invests in the State of luaho Local Govemment Invastment Pool. These funds can be
liquidated at cost es needed and are camied at cost which is not materially different than fuir value.

The invasied amounis at vear end are as lisied above.

Daoposit and Inyastment Policy

The Authority's Invastment Policy limits investment choices to interest-bearing accounts at
sporoved financial institutions and the State of Idahe Local Government Investment Poal. The
ascounis are {0 be mviewad monthiv by the Board's financial review commitics.

Credii Risk

Tha Authority has no formal policy on managing credit risk. As of Seplember 26, 2017 and 2016, the
Authonity's daposits and invastmant had the following credit ratings:

2017 2016 Credit

Investment Fair Value Fair Value Rating
Mountain West Checking $ 3322 % 276 None
Mountain West Certificate of Deposit 5,981 5913 None
Mountain West Repurchase Agreement 274,119 430,852 None
State of idaho Local Government Invesiment Pool 2,307,952 1,594,983 None

investment by the Authority in State of Idaho Local Government Investment Pool is considerad
unclassified as to credit risk because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book
entry form. The type of investments allowed is regulated by /daho Code and oversight is provided by
the Idaho State Treasurer's Office.
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FRIEDMAN MEMORIAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit rigk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Authority’ bank deposits will not
be retumed (o it. The Authority's investment policy does not limit the amount of deposits in approved
and chosen financial institutions.

As of September 30, 2017, the camying amount of the Authority's bank deposits was $283,422 and the
respeclive bank balances totaled $529,779. The Authority’s deposits at September 30, 2017, were
covered by $9,303 of insurance from the Federal Dapository Insurance Corporation and $520,476 of
collaterai. None of these deposits were unsecured or uninsured. The securities serving as collateral
are held in the name of the financial institution and not that of the Authority.

As of September 30, 2016, the camrying amount of the Authority's bank deposits was $437,041 and the
respective bank balances fotaled $457,622 The Authority's denosite ot Septembar 30, 2018, were
covered by $6,167 of insurance from the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation and $451,455 of
collateral. None of these deposits were unsecured or uninsured. The securities serving as collateral
are held in the name of the financial institution and not that of the Authority.

centrati Credit Rigk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of a loss atfributed to the magnitude of an Investment in a single
issuer. The Authority’s investment policy does not place limits on amounts invested in any one issuer.
Pooled investments and investments issued or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. Government are not
considered a concentration credit risk. At September 30, 2017 and 2016, the Authority had more than
5% of its deposits and investments invested in a repurchase agreement with Mountain West Bank. At
September 30, 2017, 100% of the repurchase agreement was invasted in the Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Cormporation. At September 30, 2016, 100% of the repurchase agreement was Invested in
the Federal National Mortgage Association. ' '

Interest Rate Risk .

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the sensitivity of its fair
value fo changes in market interest rates. The Authority does not have a formal investment policy that
limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair valye losses arising from
increasing interest rates.

The Authority had the following deposits and Investments as of September 30, 2017 and 2016:

Welghted Weighted
2017 Average 2016 Average
Investment Fair Valug Duration Fair Value Duration
Repurchase agreement $ 274119 iday $§ 430852 1 day
nvestment pool 2,307,952 90 days 1,564,983 90 days
Certificate of Deposit 5,981 4 yrs 16 days 5,913 16 days
Demand deposits 3,322 not applicable 276  not applicable
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FRIEDMAN MEMORIAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Note 3. Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2017, was as follows:
Balance Balance
9/30/2016 Increase Decrease Transfar 9/3 7

Nondepreciable capital assets:

Land $ 6712067 $ - & - % - & 8720867
Construction in progress* 12,603,136 537,851 - (10,088,151) 3,052,836
Depreciable capital assets:
Buildings and improvements 5,472,910 129,675 - - 5,602,685
Airfield and generai improvements 37,005,939 359,111 (9,377 10,088,151 47 443 824
Office equipment 91,253 . {32,989 - 58,264
Security 311,103 - (3,217) - 307,886
Maintenance equipment & vehicles 4,141,716 118,087 (411,281) - 3,848,412
Assessments, plane & studies 7,529,605 - - - 7,529,605
73,867,729 1,144,724 {456,974) - 74,555,479
Accumulated depreciation {18,230.189) _ (2.840.580) 455 474 , - _{20,613,795)
§ 55637540 $(1,695856) I - & - $ 53941684

*Construction in progress includes amounts for parking ot improvements, airline ticketing office improvements, a
noise modeling acreement. and various airport improvement projects that wera not completed as of Septembar 30,
2017.

Capital asset activity for the year ended Septamber 30, 2018, was ay ioliows:
Balance Balance
9/30/2015 Increase Decraase Transfer 9/30/2016

Nondepreciable capital assets:

Land § 6712067 5 - % - 5 - § 6,712,087
Construgiion in prograss™ 32,751,230 2,469,985 - (22,618,129) 12,603,136
Depreciable capitst assets:
Buildings and improvemants 5,498,640 - - {25,730) 5472410
Airfield and general improvements 14,539,833 16,130 - 22449976 37,005,939
Office equiproant 143,142 1,965 (18,665) {(35,189) 91,253
Security - 18,668 - 292,435 311,103
Mzintenance equipment & vehicles 4,166,911 81,438 (43,270) {63,363) 4,141,716
Assessinens. plans & studies 7,529,605 - - - 7.528 605
71,341,478 2,588,186 ({61,835) . 73,867,729
Accumulated depreciation (16,082.835) _ (2,180.289) £51.835 - _(18.230.189)
$ 55248643 § 388867 I - - - £ 55.637,540

*‘Construction in pregress inciudes amounts for parking Jot improvements, citdine ticketing office improvements,
and various airport anprovement projects that were not complated as of September 52, 2016,

Noted. Accounts Receivable
The Alrport manager, under the direction of the Authority, charges fees and rents for parking (aircraft
and automobiles), landing of aircraft, fuel fiowage, hangars and concession commissions. Landing
fees are based on the weight of the aircraft while parking fees are based on the class and weight of
each aircraft. Auto parking is on a commission basis. The Authority clerk posts these charges on a
regular basis and bills each user.

Based upon past experience, uncoilectible receivables are deemed immaterial by management.
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Note 5.

Note 6.

Note 7.

Note 8.

FRIEDMAN MEMORIAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For tha Year Ended September 30, 2017

The Authority's uncollected accounts as of September 30, 2017 and 2016, are as follows:

2017 2016
Current $ 330,105 $ 171,235
30-60 days 217 57
60-90 days {52) -
90 days and over 39¢ =
$ 330660 £ 171292
Due from other governments $ 82774 3 271,041

Long-term Liabilities
Changes in long-term chligations for the year ended September 30, 2017, are as follows:

Balance at Balance = Amount due

10/01/2016  Additions Reductions 9/30/2017  within 1 year
Compensated absences 4 172590 §. 63262 $ - § 235861 § 99831
Changes in long-term obligations for the yaar ended September 30, 2016, are as follows:

Balance at Balance  Amount dus
10/01/2015 Additions Reducfions 9/20/20M16  within 1 vear

Compensated absences § 2508527 §.20197 §$.203125 § 172500 § 78267

Pension Plan \

The Authority adopted the Friedman Memorial Airport 401(a) Plan (Plan) on January 1, 2015, for its
employees. The Plan is a defined contribution money purchase pension plan administered by the
Authority. Benefit terms, including contribution requirements, for the Plan are established and may be
amended by the Authority. The Authority is required to contribute 11.61% of each employee’s annual
gross compensation to individual employee accounts for each employee. No employee contributions
are permitted. The Authority recognized pension expense of $120,820 and $105,102 for the years
ended September 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Employees are immediately vested in the
contributions they receive and the eamings on those contributions. The Authority had no liability to the
Plan at September 30, 2017 and 2018.

The Authority offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code 457. The plan, available fo all employees, permits them to defer a portion of their
current salary until future years. Employees contributed $77,864 and $94,537 for the years ended
September 30, 2017 and 2016.

Risk Management

The Authority is exposed to varicus risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; emors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters for which the Authority
purchases commerclal insurance. There has been no significant reduction in insurance coverage In
the current year. Settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage for the current year or
the three prior yaars.

Concentrations

The Authority enters into contracts with service providers at the Airport. Because of physical space
limitations at the airfield, there are limited facilities available for service providers. During the current
year, there were three airlines that provide scheduled commercial service, one fuel supplier, one fixed-
base operator, one concessionaire, one parking management company and three rental car agencies.
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Note 9.

Note 10.

Note 1.

FRIEDMAN MEMORIAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Lease Revenue

The Authority leases portions of its property to commercial aidines, car rental companies,
concessionaires, fixed base operator(s) who provide support services to the airlines and general
aviation users of the airport, and private hangar owners/operators. Hangars owned by the Authority are
also leased out. The aiflines and some concessionaires lease on a month to month basis. The long-
term leases can only be terminated by buying out the lease and vary from 3 to 20 years. Some of
these leases are increased annually by an inflation factor based on the CPI. These inflation rates are
unknown and have not been included in amounts calculated. The net book value of property held for
operating lease as of September 30, 2017 and 2016, is $563,333, not inciuding the value of the land
leased by hangar owners/operators. No allocation of land values between leased and utilized land has
been done. The projected lease revenue at current rates is as follows:

Year Ended

September 30
2018 $ 792,790
2019 687,082
2020 677,004
2021 677,004
2022 877,004

2023 to 2027 3224619

2028 to 2032 1,624.520

2033 to 2035 435 418
Total 5 8.705.441

Passenger Facility Charges

Passenger Facility Charges (PFC) at the rate of $4.50 per enplaned passenger have been imposed by
the Authority under a Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) approved application, PFC 14-08-C-00-
SUN. effective July 1, 2014 to July 1, 2028, in the amount of $2,787,259. The total amount has been
approved for use. PFC revenue is used as matching funds for capital projects funded with Airport
improvement Project funds. There was no deferred revenue at September 30, 2017 and 2016.

The following schedule shows the amounts collected and expended:

2017 2016
Receipts Expenditures Recsipts Expenditures
PFC 14-09-C-00-5UN $ 353,944 $ 352,557 $ 303,132 $ 31094

CGapital Contributions
During the vears ended September 30, 2017 and 2016, the Authority received the following capital
contributions:

2017 2018
Federal grants $ 4931198 $ 1,322,351
Other sources 116,640 -

$§ 609750  § 1322351

18



Note 12.

Note 13.

FRIEDMAN MEMORIAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Commitments
The Authority had two open grants from the U.S. Department of Transportation Airport Improvement
Program (AIP) as of September 30, 2017. A summary of these projects is as follows:

Project Deseription
AIP 43  Rehabilitate Runway; Acquire Snow Removal Equipment; Apron Expansion
AlP 44  Conduct Environmental Study

Total Federal Expenditures

Budget Awards fo date
AlP 43 $ 2,799,038 $ 2,624,098 $ 299,895
AIP 44 111,980 104,981 74,378

§ 2011018 § 2720079 § 374073

Contingencies 7

The Authority has been committed to partnering with the community and the FAA to improve
air service and safety at the current site while aiso maintaining that the airport may need to be
relocated in the future. This philosophy has been deemed the “Dual Path Forward” and is the
preferred approach to addressing the airport within our community. The dual path approach
supports the communities desire to maintain or increase air service, improves safety and
reliability at the existing airport and enables the Authority to continue researching other
alternatives. ‘

Beginning in fiscal year 2013, the Authority initiated substantial steps to improve the existing
airport. These improvements were the culmination of an aggressive approach to the
implementation of “"Alternative 6" of the Airport Alternatives Technical Analysis, which included
an FAA Safety Risk Management study and the approval of five Modification to Standards
(MOS) to accommodate an achievable solution to the congressional mandated safety
standards at the airport by the end of calendar year 2015. These modifications consider and
limit the size of aircraft to those that currently utilize Friedman rather than making alterations
that would fully achieve a C-lll compliant airport. $34 million dollars in improvements were
completed at the airport by the end of fiscal year 2015 to meet this mandate and include a
standard Runway Safety Area (RSA), a full langth parallel Taxiway Bravo, and an expansion of
the airport passenger terminal and associated air carrier aircraft parking apron. Substantial
construction was complete by the end of the first quarter of fiscal year 2016. In the fourth
quarter of fiscal year 2016, the Authority approved additional funds for construction of a new
concession space inside theterminal. Construction rolled into fiscal year 2017 with full project
close out expected in fiscal year 2017.

The Authority completed a Draft airport master plan and submitted it to the FAA in early
FY2017. In addition to studying and planning for the future at the existing site, the master plan
also studied potential replacement sites and include the development of a 20-year capital
development plan with cost estimates for maintaining and enhancing the current airport as well
as a replacement site. The cost estimate for a replacement site indicates significant local
investment will be required. The Authority is committed to continue the endeavor to relocate
the airport when and if an acceptable site can be identified and funding can be secured.
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FRIEDMAN MEMORIAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Note 14. Related Party Transactions
The City of Hailey, Idaho is one of the entities that created the Authority by entering into a Joint
Powers Agreement. The Authority contracts with the City of Hailey for certain security services
and reimburses the City for the cost of these services. The Authority also pays the City of
Halley for sewer, water and garbage collection at the same rates as other customers. Other
services may also be contracted for at comparable rates as others are charged. The amounts
paid for these services are as follows:

2017 2016
Security services $ 3264 $ 3264
Liilities for FMAA 24,331 18,025
Construction-related utilities fully
reimbursed by the construction
companies - 1,803

The amount due to the City of Hailey at September 30, 2017, is $2.618 and was paid within 60
days. The amount due to the City of Hailey at September 30, 2016, is $2,466 and was paid
within 60 days.

Blaine County, Idaho is one of the entities that created the Authority by entening into z Joint
Powers Agreement, The Authority contracts with the Blaine County for an antenna at the Blgine
County Public Safety Facility to enhance broadband access. The amounts paid for these
services are as follows:
2017 2016
Contracts 3 200 $ 200

There was nothing due to Blaine County at September 30, 2017 or 2016.
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FRIEDMAN MEMORIAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Actual Over
Budgeted Amounts Budgetary (Under)
Qriginal Einal Basis Budget
Operating Revenue:
Airlines $ 298,700 $ 298,700 $ 287046 {1,655)
Automebile rental 594,000 594,000 674,879 80,879
Auto parking 250,000 250,000 267,875 17,8756
Rents, fees, commissions and leases 1,724,300 1,724,300 1,693,218 (31,081)
Fuel flowage fees 300,000 300,000 335,960 35,860
Other operating revenue - - 13,548 13,548
Total Operating Revenue 3,167,000 3,187,000 3,282,526 115,526
Operating Expenses:
Employee wages, benefits and taxes 1,554,683 1,584,683 1,387,939 {188,744
Supplies 148,000 148,000 91,345 (56,855)
Utilities 126,550 126,550 140,975 14,425
Services and contracts 568,650 568,850 345,773 (222,877}
Reoairs and maintenanes 139,000 135,000 325,798 186,798
Insurance 53,500 63,500 62,331 {1,189
Other operating expense 206,000 206,000 187,750 {18,250}
Total Operating Expenses 2,338,383 2,236,333 2,551,911 {284.47%)
Operating Income 330,617 330,817 730,615 399,968
Nonoperating Revanue and {Exnenses):
Passenager Fadility Charges 325.000 325,000 ahiez8e 28,928
Interast income 1,500 1,500 14,980 13,480
Gain {loss) on sale of iixad ascels . y 13,237 13,237
Federal granis 500,000 500,000 . {500,000}
Faderal grant axpenditures {534,000} {534, 000) {13,629 520,371 _
Totai Nonvparaiing Revenus and (Sxpenses) 202,500 282,500 368,516 78,018
Capital Contributions 2,178,700 2,179,700 805,759 (1,568,841%
Capital Expenditures (2,650,300} (2,650,300) (1,028,084) 1,622,216
Change in Net Position $ 152,517 $ 152517 $ 680808 § 528,289
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FRIEDMAN MEMORIAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY

RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETARY BASIS TO GAAP
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Actual
Budgetary GAAP
Basls Basls Difference
Operating Revenue:
Airlines $ 297045 $ 297045 $ -
Automoblle rental 674,879 674,879 -
Auto parking 287,875 267,875 -
Renits, fees, commissions and leases 1,693,219 1,693,219 -
Fuel flowage fees 335,960 335,960 .
Other operating revenue 13,548 13,548 -
Total Operating Revenue 3,282 528 3,282,526 -
Operating Expenses: ;
Employee wages, benefits and taxes 1,397,939 1,461,200 63,261
Supplies 91,345 91,345 -
LHilities 140,975 140,975 -
Services and contracts 345,773 :345,773
Repairs and maintenance 325,798 325,798
Insurance 62,331 62,331
Other operating expense 187,750 187,750 -
Depreciation 1 - 2,840,580 2,840,580
Total Operating Expenses - 2,661,911 5,455,752 2,803,841
Operating Income 730,615 {2,173,226) {2,903,841)
Nonoperating Revenue and (Expenses);
Passenger Facility Charges 353,928 353,944 16
Interest income 14,980 14,964 {16)
Gain {loss) on sale of fixed assets 13,237 13,237 -
Federal grants - - -
Federal grant expenditures (13,629) (13,629)
Total Nonoperating Revenue and (Expenses) - 368,516 368,516
Capltal Contributions .- 609,758 609,758 -
Capital Expenditures (1,028,084) - 1,028,084
Change in Net Position $ 680808 $ (1,194,951) $ (1,875,757

1. Accruals of compensated absences are not budgeted but are reported for GAAP,

2. Depreciation expense is not budgeted but is reported for GAAP.

3. Interest eamed on PFCs is budgeted as interest income but is reportable as PFC revenue for GAAP.
4. Capital asset purchases are budgeted as an expense but are reported as an asset for GAAP.

Number of
Explanation
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

To the Board
Friedman Mematial Airport Authority
Hailey, Idaho

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the stendards apnlicable to finandal audits contained in Governmental Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptrolier General of the United States, the financial statements of the govemmental activities and the
General fund of Friedman Memorial Airport Authority , as of and for the year ended September 30, 2017,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Friedman Memorial Airport
Authority ‘s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 9, 2018.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Friedman Memorial Airport
Authority’s internal control over financial reporting (intemal control) to determine the audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opiniens on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Friedman Memorial
Airport Autharity’s Internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Authority’s intaimal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing thelr assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A materlal weakness is a defidency, or a
combination of deficiencles, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiendies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit aftention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencles in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, materlal
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Friedman Memorial Airport Authority’s finandal
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompllance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of finandal statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disdosed no Instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s intemal control or
on compllance. This report Is an integral part of an audit performed In acoordance with Government Auditing
Standards In considering the entity’s intemal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Meridian, Idaho
January 9, 2018






INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

To the Board
Friedman Memorial Airport Authority
Halley, Idaho

We have audibed, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted In the United States of America
and the standards applicable to finandal audits contalned in Governmental Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptrolier General of the United States, the finandal statements of the govemmental activities and the
General fund of Friedman Memorlal Airport Authority , as of and for the year ended September 30, 2017,
and the related notes to the financlal statements, which collectively comprise Friedman Memorial Airport
Authority ‘s basic financial statements, and have Issued our report thereon dated January 9, 2018.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Friedman Memorial Alrport
Authority’s internal control over finandal reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing cur opinlons on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Friedman Memorial
Alrport Autherity’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Authority’s internal control.

A deficlency in intermal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A materfal weakness is a defidency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there Is a reasonable possibllity that a materfal
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be. prevénted, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a defidiency, or a combination of defidendes, in internal control
that is less severe than a matenial weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of interal control was for the limited purpose described In the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in Internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be materfal weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been Identified.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtalning reasonable assurance about whether Friedman Memorial Airport Authority’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of finandial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disdosed no Instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government: Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or
on complianca. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Govermnment Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s intemal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose,

Meridian, Idsho
January 9, 2018



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT
COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON THE PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

To the Board of
Friedman Memorial Airport Authority
Hailey, Idaho -

Report on Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Friedman Memorial Airport Authority (the Authority) with the types of
compliance requirements described in the Passenger Fadiity Charge Audit Guide for Public Agendes, Issued by
the Federal Aviation Administration (the Guide), that could have a direct and materfal effect on Its passenger
facllity charge program for the year ended September 30, 2017.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws and regulations applicable to Its
passenger faclity charge program.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibllity Is to express an opinion on the Authority’s compllance based on our audit of the types of
compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in acoordance with auditing
standards genarally accepted in the United States of America; the- standards applicable to finandal audits
contained In Government Auditing Standards, ssued by the Compiroller General of the United States; and the
Guide. Those standards and the Guide require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assuranoe aboutt whether noncompllance with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on the passenger fadlity charge program ooaurred. An audit indudes examining, on a
test basis, evidence about the Authority’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the passenger fadility
charge program However; our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Authority’s compliance.

Opinion on the Passenger Facility Charge Program
In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all materfal respects, with the compliance requirements referred to

above that could have a direct and material effect on its passenger fadlity charge program for the year ended
September 30, 2017,



Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we
oonsidered the Authority’s Internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on its passenger faciity charge program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the drcumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and
report on intemal control over compliance in accordance with the Guide, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of intemal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control over compliance,

A deficiency In intemal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not aflow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of the
passenger facility charge program on a timely basis, A material weakness in internal control over compliance is
a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of the passenger faility charge
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis, A significant deficiency in intermal
control over complianice is a defidency, or combination of deficiencies, In internal control over compliance with 2
type of compliance requirement of the passenger fadility charge program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
govemance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all defidencies in internal control over compliance
that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any defidiendes in internal
contral over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the reguirements of the Guide.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Passenger Facility Charges Collected and Expended — Cash Basis

We have audited the financial statements of Friedman Memorial Airport Authority as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2017, and have issued our report thereon dated January 9, 2018 which contained an
unmodifled opinion on those financial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of
passenger fadility charges is presented for purposes of additional analysis as spedified in the Guide and is not a
required part of the financial statements. Suich information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the finandal
statements and certain additional procedures, induding comparing and recondling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the finandial statements or to the finandal
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of passenger facility charges collected
and expended — cash basis is faitly stated in all material respedts in relation to the finandal statements as a
whole.

Meridian, Tdshe
January 9, 2018



FRIEDMAN MEMORIAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGES
Year Ended September 30, 2017 and Each Quarter During the Yaar Ended September 20, 2017
With Cumulative Totals as of September 30, 2017

September 30,  Quarter1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 YearEnded September30,
2016 Oclober to January to April to July to September 30, 2017
Program Tots{  Decamber March dune September 2017 Total Program Total
Ravenue:
Collections 5 519,204 § BTG § 85,263 $ 75310 $ 104500 § 353,020 % 873,222
Roliover from prior PFC 84,403 - - - - - 84,403
Interest 832 2 5 . - -] 18 L]
Total Revenue 804,520 78,787 95,268 75,313 104,596 353,044 958,473
Disbursemants;
Application 14-08-C-00-SUNME-10-U-00-SUN
001 RSA Formulation - - 17,252 27,123 - 44 375 44,375
002 Acquire SRE - - - 88,821 103,000 189,831 188,631
003 Mastar Tax Plan 431,440 54,522 84,020 - - 118,551 550,000
004 Relocate SW Taxilane Bypass 83,480 N - - - - 83,430
005 Relocate GA Apron 87,208 - - - - - 67,208
009 Relocate Power to PAPI 5,188 - - - - - 5,188
012 PFC Adminlstration 16,920 - ~ N - - 16,820
Total Disbursaments 504,253 54,527 81,281 113,754 103,000 362,957 858 810
Not PFC Revenus $ : 278 S_ . 24245 3 13,987 3 (38441) 8 1508 8 1,387 § 1,683
PFC Account Balance $ 2% % 24521 % 38508 § 67 §$ 1663 $ 1&3 $ 1,663

Seoe accompenying notes to Schadule of Expenditures of Passanger Facllity Charges



Note 1.

Note 2.

FRIEDMAN MEMORIAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY

NOTE TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGES
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

Program Description

The Schedule of Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges presents only the activity of the Passenger
Facility Charges Program of the Friedman Memorial Airport Authority. Passenger Facility Charges are fees
imposed by the Authority en enplaned passengers for the purpose of generating revenue for Authority
projects that increase capacity, increase safety, and/or mitigate noise impact.

Basis of Accounting

The Schedule of Expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges presents the revenues received from
Passenger Facility Charges and expenditures incurred on approved projects on the cash basis of
accounting.



FRIEDMAN MEMORIAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY

PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGES SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

There are no audit findings for the year ended September 30, 2017.



FRIEDMAN MEMORIAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY
PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGES SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
For the Year Ended September 30, 2017

There are no audit findings for the year ended September 30, 2016.



ATTACHMENT 7

RESOLUTION OF THE FREDMAN MEMORIAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY
REGARDING CONTRACTING AUTHORITY

WHEREAS, the Friedman Memorial Airport (“Airport™) in Hailey, Idaho is operated by
the Friedman Memorial Airport Authority (“FMAA”) pursuant the Amended and Restated Joint

Powers Agreement entered into between the City of Hailey and Blaine County pursuant to Idaho
Code§67-2328;

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Joint Powers Agreement and Idaho law, FMAA the authority
to enter into contracts and agreements affecting the affairs of the Airport;

WHEREAS, it is the best interests of the FMAA and the efficient and orderly operation
of the Airport to grant authority for making expenditures, contracting and/or purchasing of goods
and services for Airport purposes {collectively “Contracts™), to members of the FMAA
management and Board, without specific approval by the entire Board, except where Board
approval is required by Idaho law, as set forth herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT any Contract with an annual value of
$10,000 or less, may be approved and executed by the Airport Manager. The Airport Manager
shall consult with the FMAA Board Chair prior to entering into any Contract with a value of
over $5,000 in any given year;

BE IT FURTER RESOLVED THAT, any Contract with an annual value of greater than
$10,000 but less than $25,000, may be approved and executed by the FMAA Board Chair;

BE IT FURTER RESOLVED THAT, any Contract with an annual value of greater than
$25,000 but less than $49,999 may be approved by a majority of the FMAA Board Finance
Committee and executed by the FMAA Board Chair; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT all Contracts with an annual value of $50,000 or
greater shall be approved by the FMAA Board prior to execution, unless incurred on an
emergency basis as the result of a force majeure event, including, but not limited to, acts of God,
aircraft indents or acts of terrorism, in which cast Contracts may be approved by any two (2)
Board Members during the course of said event.

ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the FMAA Board this day of December, 2017.

By

Don Keim, Chair

FMAA RESOLUTION NO. 11436001



f ié.ACHMENT 8

AL fiy 203)

1. Place the matter on a monthly meeting agenda for

( (:2;%
3 FOR _ENACT ALREPOR REGULA

general discussion by the Authority.

2. If the Authority wishes to proceed further with the
matter after the general discussion at the Authority meeting,
instruct counsel and staff to prepare a rough preliminary draft
of the proposed Airport regulation.

3. Distribute the rough draft of the proposed regulation
to all Airport tenants and interested parties. In the event that
the subject matter for the proposed regulation may have impacts
on adjacent property owners, distribute the proposed rough draft
to the owners of all properties beyond five-hundred (500) feet of
the Airport boundaries (i.e., land use matters, noise matters and
proposed areas of operation). 1In the event that the Aunthority
finds that a greater number of property owners may be impacted by
the proposed regulation than is provided for above, the Authority
may instruct the staff to provide additional notice.

4, Publish a summary of the proposed regulation in the
Authority's newspaper of record and place public discussion of
the proposed regulation on the agenda for the next Authority
meeting.

5. If after the discussion, the Authority wishes to go
forward with the proposed regulation, instruct staff and counsel

to prepare the regulation in final form, publish a summary of the

final form of the proposed'régulatidh;”éiamplace the regulation
on the next meeting of the Authority for its first reading.

PROCEDURES FOR ENACTING AIRPORT REGULATIONS/1



6. Republish the summary after the first reading and place
it on the next meeting's agenda for its second reading and

approval.

7. Publish the Airport regulation in full within one (1)
month after its adoption.

8. In the event that four-fifths (4/5) of the Authority
find that an emergency exists concerning the subject matter of
the regulation, allow the second reading to be waived and action
to be taken on the regulation after the first reading.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE FRIEDMAN MEMORIAL AIRPORT

AUTHORITY this 6th day of September, 1994.

PROCEDURES FOR ENACTING AIRPORT REGULATIONS/2
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